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PROCEEDI NGS

CHAI RVAN JONES:

It is close enough to 9:30, we'll call
the neeting of the Board of Commerce and
| ndustry for -- actually, this is our February
neeting, but we're holding it on March 1, call
It to order.

Ms. Simmons, would you call roll, make
sure we have a quorunf
M5. SI MMONS:

Yes, sir. Good norning, everyone.

Br andon Burri s?

MR. BURRI S:
Her e.
MS.  SI MMONS:
Mayor David Toups?
MAYCOR TOUPS:
Her e.
MS.  SI MMONS:
Yvette Col a?
M5. COLA:
Her e.
MS.  SI MMONS:
Guy Ml nnis?
MR MCI NN S:
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Her e.

MS.  SI MMONS:
Ri ckey Fabra?
(No response.)
Manuel Faj ardo?
(No response.)

Stuart Mdss?

VR. MOSS:
Her e.
M5. SI MVONS:

Representative Vincent St. Blanc, proxy

for Paul a Davis?
REPRESENTATI VE ST. BLANC:
Her e.
M5. SI MVONS:
Senator Barry M1 1igan,
M ke Reese?
(No response.)
M5. SI MVONS:
Kennet h Havar d?
MR, HAVARD:.
Her e.
M5. SI MMONS:
Jeral d Jones?

CHAI RVAN JONES:

proxy for Senator
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Present .
M5. SI MVONS:
Senat or McQuai n?
MS. MCQUAI N:
Her e.
M5. SI MVONS:
Senator Rhett Allain?
SENATOR ALLAI' N
Her e.
M5. SI MMONS:
Representative Stuart Bi shop?
REPRESENTATI VE BI SHOP:
Her e.
M. SI MMONS:
Jan Mol ler?
(No response.)
MB. SI MMONS:
Secretary Don Pi erson?
SECRETARY Pl ERSON:
Present .
M. SI MMONS:
CGeorge Nassar ?
MR. NASSAR
Present .

V5. SI MMONS:
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Darrel Saizan?
(No response.)
SI MVONS:
Mar shal Sim en?
SIM EN:
Her e.
SI MVONS:
Ronni e Sl one?
SLONE:
Present .
SI MMONS:
Zach Lenoi ne, proxy for Dr. Shawn W/ son?
LEMO NE:
Present .
SI MVONS:
Dr. Wodrow WI son?
(No response.)
SI MVONS:
Travis Hol |l ey?
HOLLEY:
Her e.
Dr. Beverly Thonpson?
(No response.)
SI MMONS:

We have a quorum
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CHAI RVAN JONES:
Thank you, ma'am Board Menbers, you've
received, | hope, the mnutes of the
January 2023 neeting. If so, and if you're so
inclined to entertain a notion to approve?
Motion fromM. Stuart Mss, second from
M. Simen.
Any questions or comments fromthe Board?
Any comrents fromthe public?
Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:
Aye.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Any opposition?
There being none, the notion carries.
Good norning, Ms. Adegbe. How are you
t oday?
MS. ADEGBE:
Good norning, well and yoursel f?
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Good and well. Thank you. Let's walk us
t hrough the Quality Jobs Program pl ease.
M5. ADEGBE:
We have one new application, 20190517

ProKeep, Ol eans Pari sh.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. W have a notion on this one
QJ. application, a notion fromM. Slone to
approve, second from M. Mss. Any questions
or coments fromthe Board?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MS. ADEGBE:

There are four renewal applications,
20170427 CA Technol ogi es and Sol uti ons,
Laf ayette Parish; 20170390 Chanpi on Hone
Bui | ders, Inc, Vernon Parish; 20180197
Fi brebond Corporati on, Wbster Pari sh;
20170271 UTLX Manufacturing, LLC, Rapides
Pari sh.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

"1l entertain a notion from M. Nassar

to approve, second from Mayor Toups. Any

gquestions or comments fromthe Board?
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Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MBS. ADEGBE:

One | ate renewal application, 20170070
Mauser USA, LLC, Ascension Parish; contract
effective date 2/15/2017, initial contract
expiration date 2/14/2022, |ate renewal
request date 10/ 28/2022.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Do we have anyone here from Mauser?

Conme forward, please. (Good norning.
Wul d you state your nane and your position
wi th the conpany, please.

MR. FI SH:

Good norning. WIlliamFish, |'m Finance

Manager for Mauser Packagi ng.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Al right. Thank you.
MR, HUNTER
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Darrell Hunter, Plant Manager of Mauser
Packagi ng.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you for being here this norning.
We're just trying to understand the basis for
the late renewal so we can hel p us determ ne
what, if anything, we're going to do about it.
MR FI SH:

Sure. W had been working with a
third-party conpany to handle our filings for
the Quality Jobs applications and al so the
renewal s. There was confusion on the part of
the third-party partner in terns of the
deadline. They had confused that with the
deadline for the | TEP renewal, which was
January of 2023. They didn't discover this
error until mdway around June of 2022 and
informed us of the late filing at that point.

And then due to other issues with some
turnover in our payroll departnent, it took us
nmore tinme than we would have |liked to gather
the information for the renewal application
and that led to the late filing of it, which
was finally submtted in October of 2022.

&oing forward, we have plans in place to avoid
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m ssing these deadlines. W actually have up
a new plant controller that's responsible for
the Geismar facility, and she's working
closely with our third-party partner as well
as with establishing contacts with the states,
and her nane is Daphne Janes. And so she's
putting a plan in place so that we have firm
dates on the cal endar that we can plan in
wor ki ng towards, you know, getting all the
necessary data so that we don't m ss these
deadl i nes in going forward.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you for that. | know that sone
fol ks who watch us ask questions about why we
were as persnickety, if you wll, on this.
And the reason is, and so everybody knows,
t hese prograns are very valuable. They're
bot h val uabl e for the conpanies, but also the
conpany's presence in the State is val uable
for the State. And so this is a give and take
situation. |In order for the Departnent to be
able to adequately determ ne conpliance issues
and nmake sure that the State is getting the
information that it needs in order to judge

the conpany's conpliance, we -- filing the
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reports, filing the applications, renewals,
t he deadl i nes nean sonething. W, |ike many

of the conpanies in the State, we do not have

unlimted resources, believe it or not, and so

it takes tinme for us to evaluate things as
wel | .

So these deadlines are inportant for
abundant reasons, and it's al so becone the
practice, and this |I'm speaking for the
Board's edification as well, the Q program
unli ke sone of the other incentive prograns,
do not have a built-in penalty for late
renewal. So the options here, as pointed out
in the agenda, is you can approve the renewal
Wi t hout penalty, you can approve with a
penalty, or you can deny the renewal all
t oget her.

So as |I've grown fond of saying, the

world is certainly your oyster on this

situati on. It has been what we've had sim/ ar

situations under the Q programin the past,
and our general guideline has been for a

one-year penalty on the renewal -- approving
the renewal with a one-year penalty. You're

not necessarily held to that, but that has

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 17

been the practice for the Board in the past
times.

So with that, | would entertain a notion
fromthe Board? A notion fromthe Board? |
woul d entertain a notion fromthe Board?

MR. NASSAR

| would nake a notion that we penali ze
for one year.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Okay. |Is your notion then to approve the
renewal wth a one-year penalty?
MR, NASSAR:

Yes.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

So we have a notion from M. Nassar. W
have a second from M. Slone. Does any Board
Menbers have any questions for the folks from
Mauser or otherw se, or any coments?

Hearing none, are there any further
coments fromthe public?

Do you have anything further to say?

MR FI SH.

So can you clarify what that neans with

t he one-year penalty?

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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In other words, there would be a one --
you get the renewal, in other words, there's

anot her five years on the renewal, but there's

a one year -- you'll lose one year of that
program
MR FI SH:

kay. |Is that one year at the end or one

year at the beginning?
CHAl RMAN JONES:
|"mgoing to let you work that out with
the staff. | think what we've done is at the
end?
MS. ADEGBE:
Correct.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
To ny under st andi ng.
MS. ADEGBE:
One year at the end.
MR FI SH:
So we'll only get it for four years
I nstead of five?
CHAl RMAN JONES:
Correct.
MR FI SH:
Ckay.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:
That's assum ng the notion passes. |t
hasn't passed yet.

Al right. Any other coments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAl RMAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
Thank you for being here today and thank you
for explaining this.

MR Fl SH:

Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Next ?

MS. ADEGBE:

One change of project physical |ocation,
20180061 Align Technol ogi es Corp. Previous
address 4176 Canal Street, New Ol eans,
Loui si ana, previous Parish Oleans. New
address, 4637 Tchoupitoulas Street, New
Ol eans, Louisiana, Oleans Parish.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Entertain a notion to approve. | have a
notion from M. Slone, second from Mayor
Toups. Any comments fromthe Board?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe
public?

Hearing none, all those in favor, say
aye.

ALL:
Aye.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MS. ADEGBE:

This concludes Quality Jobs.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you very nuch. M. Lanbert, would

you step forward?
MR. FAVALORO

Yes, | wll. Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

M. Faval oro, apparently, you're stepping
in for Ms. Lanmbert, | take it?
MR. FAVALORO

Yes, Sir.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Thank you very nuch. Walk us through the
Restorati on Tax Abatenent Program
MR, FAVALORO

We have one new application for the
Restoration Tax Abatenent program 20190012
Janes and Tiffany Bellot in Iberia Parish.

That concl udes the new applications.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

And this has al ready been approved by the

| ocal entities?
MR, FAVALORO

Yes, sir, it has.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

And once we approve it, it will be in
pl ace?

MR. FAVALORO

Yes, sir.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. Any gquestions or comments --
excuse ne. Any notion fromthe Board? W
have a nmotion from M. Mdss to approve.
Second? Seconded from M. Simen.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

There bei ng none, any comrents fromthe

public?
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Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MR. FAVALORO

There is one Restoration Tax Abatenent
renewal application, 20161642 214 South 14th
Street, LLC in East Baton Rouge Parish. That
concl udes the renewal .

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. Have a notion? Have a notion
fromM. Cola to approve. A second? A second
from Mayor Toups.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
Any opposition?
There being none, the notion carries.

MR, FAVALORO
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Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you, sir.

Enterpri se Zone, Ms. Metoyer?
MS. METOYER

Good nor ni ng.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Good nor ni ng.
M5. METOYER:

There are 11 new applications, 20200031
Best Stop Cajun Food, LLC, Lafayette Parish;
20200137 E. Drew G enent, DDS, LLC, Lafourche
Pari sh; 20160670 FTC Hotels, LLC, Doing
Busi ness As SpringHi Il Suites, St. Tammany
Parish; 20200110 Loui siana Fish Fry Products
Limted, East Baton Rouge Parish; 20200046
Loui si ana Sugar Cane Cooperati ve,
| ncorporated, St. Martin Parish; 20151387 MSY
Hospitality, LLC, Jefferson Parish; 20200109
Met al pl ate Gal vani zi ng, LP, Jefferson Davis
Pari sh; 20200066 Ochsner i nic Foundati on,
Jefferson Parish; 20200085 Cchsner dinic
Foundati on, Jefferson Parish; 20200165
Sout hwest Loui si ana Hospital Association,

Cal casi eu Parish; and 20200355 Tangi Pi nes
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Seni or Care, LLC, Tangi pahoa Pari sh.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Do we have a notion to approve these
applications? W have a notion from M. Mss
to approve these in globo. Do | have a
second? Have a second from Representative St
Bl anc.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Motion to approve these in globo.

Any coments fromthe public?

There being none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MS. METOYER

W have eight term nations, 20161191
Al der Hotel Partners, LLC, Ol eans Parish, the
existing contract is 4/15 of '16 through 4/ 14
of 2020. The requested termdate is 4/14 of
2020. The programrequirenments have been net.
No additional jobs are anticipated. 20170002
C&C Marine and Repair, LLC, Plaquem nes
Parish, the existing contract is July 2, 2017
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to July 1, 2022. The requested termdate is
1/ 2 of 2020. The programrequirenents have
been nmet. No additional jobs are antici pated.
20160810 International Paper, Washi ngton
Parish, the existing contract is June 15th of
2018 through June 14 of 2023. The requested
termdate is Decenber 14, 2020. The program
requi renments have been net. No additional

j obs are anticipated. 20180321 Cchsner dinic
Foundati on, Jefferson Parish, the existing
contract is August 30 of 2018 through August
29, 2023. The requested termdate is

February 28, 2021. The programrequirenents
have been net. No additional jobs are
anticipated. 20180330 Cchsner dinic
Foundation, Jefferson Parish. The existing
contract is August 30, 2018 through August 29,
2023. The requested termdate is 2/28/21.

The program requirenents have been net. No
additional jobs are anticipated. 20150945
Shel | Chem cal, LP, Ascension Parish, the
existing contract is Septenber 1, 2016 through
February 28, 2019. The requested termdate is
2/ 28 of 2019. The programrequi renents have

been net. No additional jobs are antici pated.

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 26

20180122 WR. G ace and Conpany, St. Charles
Parish, the existing contract is April 13 of
2018 through April 12 of 2023. The requested
termdate is April 12 of 2021. The program
requi renments have been net. No additional

j obs are anticipated. 20180104 Westport Linen
Services, LLC, Oleans Parish, the existing
contract is March 26 of 2018 through

March 25th of 2023. The requested term date
Is 12/ 31 of 2021. The program requirenents
have been net. No additional jobs are
anti ci pat ed.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. Do we have a notion for these
Enterprise Zone Term nations? | have a notion
fromM. Simen to approve the entire group.
We have a second from M. Sl one.

Any comrents or questions fromthe Board?

Any coments fromthe public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.

ALL:
Aye.
CHAI RMAN JONES:
Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
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M5, METOYER

That concl udes EZ.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you, nm'am
M5. METOYER

You' re wel cone.

CHAl RMAN JONES:

Al right. Mve to the Industrial Tax
Exenpti on program under the 2018 Rules. M.
Cheng and M. Usie, let nme know how you want
to proceed.

MS. CHENG

Good nor ni ng.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Good norni ng.
MS. CHENG

W have 13 Post EO 2018 Rul es
applications. 20180503, Alliance Conpressors,
Nat chi t oches Parish; 20210507, Alliance
Conpressors, LLC, Natchitoches Pari sh;
20200094- A, Bercen Chem cals, LLC, Livingston
Pari sh; 20220504, C ean Hydrogen Wrks LA-1,
LLC, doi ng business as Ascension C ean Energy,
Ascensi on Parish; 20220397, Crying Eagle
Brewi ng Conpany, LLC, Cal casieu Parish;
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20230005, Freepoi nt Eco- Systens, Baton Rouge
Recycling, LLC, Ascension Parish; 20210171,

| ndorama Ventures O efins, LLC, Calcasieu
Parish; 20200380, Kennedy Rice Dryers, LLC
Mor ehouse Parish; 20220235, LACC, LLC US,

Cal casi eu Parish; 20210307, Louisiana Plastic
| ndustries, Quachita Parish; 20220117,
Loui si ana Sugar Cane Cooperative, Inc, St.
Martin Parish; 20220115, Magnolia Power, LLC
| berville Parish; and 20190290- A, West| ake

Vi nyl s Conpany, LP, Ascension Parish.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Very good. Do we have a notion? A
nmotion fromM. St. Blanc to approve. A
second from M. Slone. Now, before we --
ask for any further coments fromthe Board,
you know, everyone of these investnents are
huge for the conmunities that where they sit,
but there was a tine not too |long ago, if we
saw a billion dollar investnent, it would have
been eye popping. And now when we see $7.5
billion dollar investnent, that, |I've just got
to say, is particularly eye popping. But |I'm
inm world, I"'mexcited to see a mllion

dollar investnent. So we thank you for all of
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t hese conpani es in nmaeking these investnents,
but the range here is fromvery snall
conpanies with relatively small investnents,
but is huge for those industries and for those
conpanies. So we thank you for the confidence
you're showng in the State of Loui siana.

But with that, | would entertain a notion
to approve these applications. Do | have a

nmotion from M. Nassar? Second from M. Mbss.

Any ot her comments or questions fromthe
Boar d?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

There being none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There is none, the notion carries.
MS. CHENG

We have 17 Pre-EO Tinely renewal s,
20141304, Bunge North Anerica, Inc, St.
Charl es Parish; 20130429-B, Caneron LNG LLC,
Caneron Parish; 20161536, Diversified Foods &
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Seasonings, LLCin St. Tanmany Pari sh;
20150934, Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Louisiana,
LLC, Caddo Parish; 20150934-A, Dr. Reddy's
Laboratories Louisiana, LLC, Caddo Pari sh;
20150934-B, Dr. Reddy's Laboratories
Loui si ana, LLC, Caddo Parish; and 20150934-C,
Dr. Reddy's Laboratories Louisiana, LLC, Caddo
Pari sh; 20151505, Equilon Enterprises, LLC
DBA Shell O Products US, St. Charles Parish;
20121215- A, Honeywel | International, Ascension
Parish; 20121215-B, Honeywel |l International,
Ascensi on Parish; 20151722, Honeywel |
| nternational, East Baton Parish; 20161523,
Kennedy Rice MII, LLC, Mrehouse Pari sh;
20150156- A, Loui siana I ntegrated Pol yethyl ene
JV, LLC, Calcasieu Parish; 20161175-A, Newpark
Drilling Fluids, LLC, Lafourche Parish;
20151570, Sasol Chem cals USA, LLC, Cal casieu
Pari sh; 20150945, Shell Chem cal Conpany, LP,
Ascensi on Parish; and 20141070-B, Shintech
Loui si ana, LLC, Iberville Parish.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Do we have a notion on these Pre
Executive Order renewal s? | have a notion

from Mayor Toups to approve. Do | have a
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second? Second from Ms. Col a.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?
Yes, M. Simen?
MR SIM EN:

"1l abstain --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

M cr ophone, pl ease.
MR SIM EN:

"Il abstain fromthe Sasol Conpani es.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

All right. M. Simen wll be recusing
hi mself fromthe Sasol Chemcals. And I'm
gl ad you nentioned that because the Chair
needs to recuse hinself fromthe four
contracts for Dr. Reddy's Laboratories

Loui siana, that's 20150934 A, B, and C, |'Il]I

be recusing nyself fromthe vote. | wll
still be facilitating the vote for purposes of
procedure.

Any ot her coments or questions fromthe
Boar d?

Have a notion and a second. Any comments
fromthe public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:
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Aye.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

| s there any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MB. CHENG

W have three Pre EO | ate renewal
applications, 20151744, Cornerstone Chem cal
Conpany, Jefferson Parish, initial contract
expiration date, 12/31 of '21; |ate renewal
request date, 12/21 of '22; 20151745,
Cor nerstone Chem cal Conpany in Jefferson
Parish, initial contract expiration, 12/31 of
'21 and |l ate renewal request date of 12/21/22.
And 20141329, G E. O Heat Exchangers, LLC,
| berville Parish, initial contract expiration
12/ 31 of '21, late renewal request date, 10/17
of '22.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. Do we have anyone here from
Cor nerstone Chem cal ? Pl ease state your nane
and your position wth the conpany, please.
M5. BROUSSARD:

Yes, ny nane is JoLena Broussard, and |
am t he Manager of Strategic Engagenent and

Comuni cati ons for Cornerstone Chem cal
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Conpany.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Just give us an idea. | think you've
heard the discussion earlier. Tell us a
little bit about what happened for the late
renewal .

M5. BROUSSARD:

Yes. So, initially, we had a prior staff
menber at Cornerstone who was historically
responsi bl e for and singl e- handedly
responsible for all things related to the I TEP
matter. And what happened was that she,
unfortunately, had a contract marked for
renewal in 2022 instead of 2021, and she was
| ooking at it based on their contract
execution date, you know, instead of the
contract effective date. But since the
departure of that prior staff nenber,
Cornerstone has definitely put in the proper
processes, procedures, protocols, and gotten
nore individuals involved in the | TEP process
fromthe chief officer |level, human resources,
comruni cations and finance, also working with
our consultant at Advantous to nake sure that

we fully understand, you know, all the rules,
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regul ati ons, deadlines because we do know t hat
t hose are inportant.

So we do have all those in place. W do
now know, you know, that the correct way. And
we're going to make sure that noving forward
in the future that Cornerstone will not mss
t hose deadlines for submtting those
applications and those renewal s.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Very good. Thank you for that. Any
guestions -- excuse ne. Do we have a notion
for Cornerstone Chem cal? Again, because this
Is a Pre Executive Order contract, there are
no regul ations which dictate the penalty.

Hi storically, the penalty has been because
they were within a year, but there would still
be a one-year penalty has been historically
our practice to grant the renewal but with the
one-year penalty.

Do | have a notion? W have a notion
fromM. Slone to grant the renewal, but with
a one-year penalty. Do | have a second?

MR MOSS:

Second.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Second from M. Moss.
Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Any further comments fromthe public?

Heari ng none, all in favor of the notion,
say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.

Thank you very nuch.

MS. BROUSSARD:

Thank you so much for your tine.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Yes, indeed. Next?

MS. CHENG

| guess we need soneone to cone up for
G E. O Heat Exchangers?

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Yeah, that's right. [|I'msorry. The ball
iIs in ny court and not yours, M. Cheng;
forgive ne.

Thank you, sir. He's ahead of both of
us.

VMR, CAUSEY:
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Absol utely. Good nor ni ng.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you. State your nane and position
with the conpany, please.
MR. CAUSEY:

Kevi n Causey, Chief Human Resources
Oficer.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Great. And you've heard the question,
just tell us what happened, what the reason
for the |ate renewal.

MR, CAUSEY:

Absol utely. Around August of 2021,
unfortunately, | was diagnosed wth cancer.
have a small HR team And at that tinme, |
think they worked as well as they could to
make sure everything that was -- the
responsibilities in our office were taken care
of. Unfortunately, this renewal was a sinple
oversight by the team W also worked with
the conpany DDA in sone other efforts for the
conpany and sone of the emails were confused
with it, and it was never brought to ny
attention. Wen | returned back to the

office, which | was out for about eight

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 37

nont hs, once | returned back, it was sonething

that we got right on to nmake sure we had it
ready to file. So, unfortunately, that was
the situation that happened. It was
unfortunate. But, again, it was a sinple
oversi ght .
CHAl RMAN JONES:

| hope you're doing better.
MR, CAUSEY:

| am Thank you.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

You | ook great.
MR, CAUSEY:

Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Good. Congratul ations for beating that
stuff.
MR CAUSEY:

Thank you. Absolutely.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Unfortunately, as you've heard, this
situation is a serious one fromLED s
per specti ve.
MR CAUSEY:

Absol utel y.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Again, this would fall in line for
according to past practice for being eligible
for granting renewal but wth a one-year
penalty. Do | have a notion?

Motion fromM. Simen, renewal with a
one-year penalty. Do | have a second? Second
fromM. Allain.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Any coments fromthe public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.

ALL:
Aye.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MR. CAUSEY:

Thank you.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Thank you, sir. W w sh you the best.
MR. CAUSEY:

Thank you.

M5. CHENG

We have two post EO 2017 Rul es renewal s,

20161647, Barriere Construction Conpany, LLC
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in St. Charles Parish, and 20161576- A,

Loui si ana Sugar Refining, LLCin St. Janes

Pari sh.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Al right.

SENATOR ALLAI N

M. Chairman?
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Yes, sir.
SENATOR ALLAI N

| would like to recuse nyself fromthe
Loui si ana Sugar Refinery, | sit on the parent
boar d.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Very good. Thank you, sir. Senator
Allain will be recusing hinself, and that
means he wll not be participating in the
debate or the vote.

Just again for the Board's educati on,
perhaps for the public as well, you'll notice
on your agenda, there's an annual conpliance
summary. And there, at |east for one of
these, there are a couple of nonconpliance
I ssues, but those nonconpliances have been

dealt with by this Board every year as they
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came up. So that's there for your
i nformation, but it's not -- not -- we're not
havi ng to readdress those issues.

So with that, | would entertain a notion
on these two renewals. Mtion fromM. St.
Blanc to approve. Do | have a second? Second
from M. Nassar.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

There being none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MB. CHENG

W have one change in nanme only contract
amendnment, MCC Met hacryl ates Americas, Inc.,
20200516; new nane is M tsubishi Chem cal
Anerica, Inc. in Ascension Parish.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Motion to approve this change of nane,
M. Simen. Second from Mayor Toups.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?
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There bei ng none, any coments fromthe

public?

There being none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MB. CHENG

We have one change in | ocation contract
amendnent. Triton West, LLC, 20151505- PT,
previous | ocation, which was a m stake because
It was never in Houston. The previous
| ocati on on the contract was 8931 Padfield
Street, Houston, LA 77055, St. Charles Parish.
It's being corrected to 15536 Ri ver Road,
Nor co, Louisiana 70079 in St. Charles Parish.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Motion to approve this change. Motion
fromM. Nassar. Second from M. Moss.

Any comments or questions fromthe Board?

There bei ng none, any comrents fromthe
public?

There being none, all in favor say, aye.
ALL:
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Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MB. CHENG

We have five transfer of tax exenption
contract anendnments. Oion Instrunments is
requesting deferral to the next neeting for
20130525, 20140269, 20150639, and 20160763.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Entertain a notion to defer these Orion
contracts. A notion from M. Mss. Second
fromM. Slone.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

There being none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There is none, the notion carries. Those
itens are deferred until the next neeting.
MB. CHENG

| nstrunent and Val ve Servi ces Conpany

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 43

contract 20180275 is being transferred to John
H Carter Co., Inc. in Calcasieu Parish.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Entertain a notion to approve this
transfer of contract fromM. Mss. Second
fromM. Slone.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

There bei ng none, any coments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
M5. CHENG

We have 17 contract cancellations. | do
have one that needs to be w thdrawn because it
was i ncluded incorrectly. Equilon
Enterprises, LLC, DBA Shell G| Products US is
requesting deferral of 20150201.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Let's see, do we need a notion to renove
that or was it -- was it -- it was in their

original application to --
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MB. CHENG

Right. There was a request to cancel.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay.

MB. CHENG

But we don't --
CHAI RMAN JONES:

So | guess, let's just for clarity to
make sure the record is clear, we'll entertain
a notion to approve renoval of the 20150201
fromthe Equilon request for cancellation
contract. W have a notion from M. Nassar.
Second from Ms. Col a.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

There being none, any comments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MS. CHENG

ASRC Energy Services Orega, LLC
20120941, conpany requests cancell ation,
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| beria Parish; Air Products and Chem cal s,
| nc, 20190376, conpany requests cancell ation
in Iberville Parish; Cornerstone Chem cal
Conpany, 20180171, conpany requests
cancel l ation, Jefferson Parish; Equilon
Enterprises, LLC, DBA Shell GO Products US,
20110897, 20140741, 20140742, 20161295,
20161296, 20161297, 20161368, 20161369, and
20161370, conpany requests cancellation, St.
Janmes Parish; Shell Chem cal, LP, 20180378,
conpany requests cancell ati on, Ascension
Pari sh; and Stupp Bros., Inc., DBA Stupp
Cor poration, 20190057, 20190057-A, and
20190057- B, conpany requests cancel |l ati on,
East Bat on Rouge Pari sh.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. Entertain a notion to approve
t hese cancellations, Ms. Cola. Second from
M. Sl one.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MB. CHENG

We have ten special requests. First one
I's Equilon Enterprises, LLC, DBA Shell Ql
Products US for contracts 20150201,
20150201- A, 20161827, and 20161827-A. Equilon
Enterprises submtted a letter on 11/ 30/ 22
requesting continuation of the bel ow four
active contracts at the Convent site while
they continue their efforts to identify future
opportunities for the facility.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Do we have soneone here from Shell ?
MR PALMER:

Good norning, M. Chairman, Menbers.
Fred Pal mer, Corporate and Gover nnent
Rel ati ons Regi onal Manager for Shell for the
Sout heast US based here in Baton Rouge, and |
have a col | eague here, M. Phillips.
MR. PHI LLI PS;

Good norning. Wade Phillips, | amtax
counsel .

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Great. Tell us what we've got going on
here so we can better understand your request.
MR PALMER:

So due to the nonoperational status of
the Convent site, we were before you | ast year
where we asked for the extension of the |ITEP
contracts. There are a total of 14 --

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Bring it closer, please.
MR PALMER

-- atotal of 14 contracts, which you
approved for a one-year extension. W're now
com ng back, and of those 14, asking for the
renewal of these four related to two projects
at the site as part of the continued
re-purposing of the site and our investnent
that we'll be making at the Convent site. And
then the itens you just canceled, the 10
contracts related to the Convent site, those
were part of the 14, and we initiated
canceling those, but wanted to extend these
four contracts.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
We have a notion from M. Nassar to

approve the special request. Do we have a
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second? | have a second from M. Mbss.
Any questions or comments fromthe Board?
Any further comments fromthe public?
Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:
Aye.
CHAl RMAN JONES:
Any opposition?
There being none, the notion carries.
MR PALMER
Thank you.
MR. PHI LLI PS:
Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Thank you for being here. Thank you for
continuing to work on that site.
MS. CHENG
The next special request is from The
Fol ger Cof fee Conpany, 20170466, 20170467,
20180297, 20180298, and 20190391 and 20190392.
There is a m ssing nunber on the agenda, just
to point out, it's 20190391.
CHAI RMAN JONES:
Al right. W have folks here from --

representing Folgers. Please cone to the
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t abl e.
MR. LEONARD:
Good norni ng, Chairnman, Menbers of the

Board. My nane is Jimmy Leonard. | live here
in Baton Rouge. |'mw th Advantous
Consul ti ng.

CHAI RMAN JONES:
|"mgoing to ask you to pull the mc a

little bit closer to you. Thank you very

much.
MR LEONARD:

Yes, sir. Again, ny nane is Jimy
Leonard. | live here in Baton Rouge. [|I'm

wi th Advantous Consulting, and | sit here
before you today because we have been
assisting Folgers with their | TEP
applications. Wth ne is Chris Todaro with
Fol gers Conpany, and he'll have sonme words to
say here in a second. Before | turn the mc
over, I'd just like to make a coupl e of
statenents for the record.

W' re back here before you today because

of one sinple reason, the New Oleans City

Council, New Ol eans School Board, and the New

Ol eans Parish Sheriff continue to foll ow
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their own I TEP rules, which are not aligned
and far exceed the eligibility expectations
and rul es set out by the Board of Commerce and
| ndustry. As you may recall, a significant
anount of tinme and energy went into creating
BC& rules on how to inplenent the Governor's
Executive Order. W had nultiple neetings,
many that went on for hours on end, and this
Board has done a Yeonan's job to get the I TEP
rules in a place that we can use today froma
practical application for pursuing | TEP
exenptions. Soon after these BC& rules were
in place, there were two communities that took
additional liberties to pass |ocal ordinances
and resolutions, effectively including |ocal

| aws and |ocal rules in the place that far
exceeded the BC& 's rules. East Baton Rouge
Pari sh and Ol eans Parish were the taxing
authorities that did such. East Baton Rouge
Pari sh, after the Board of Commerce and

| ndustry passed its own resolution informng
the local communities that there is only one
set of rules and there's only one authority,
and that is the Board of Commerce and

| ndustry's rules and the Board of Commerce and
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| ndustry is the authority to create rul es.

East Bat on Rouge Parish went back and
nodi fied their resolutions so that they could
be inline wwth the Board of Commerce and
| ndustry's resolutions. In an effort -- |I'm
sorry. Nola has sinply decided to ignore your
wi shes and do their own thing. So we sit here
today, every local taxing jurisdiction in the
State of Louisiana follows the Board of
Comrerce and Industry rules, except Ol eans.

G ven ny experience supporting conpanies

t hrough their I TEP application approval
processes, it has been ny expectation that
there may be many | ocal authorities who would
also like to create additional rules and

regul ations to govern | TEP, but they have not.

Denyi ng Fol gers appeal, thus all ow ng
Folgers to |l ose their | TEP because of those
illicit rules will tell every School Board,
every Parish Council, every Police Jury, every
Cty Council, and every Sheriff in the State
that they too can ignore and defy the Board of
Commerce and Industry w thout consequence. M
fear is that all the hard work and tine that

has been done to date to inplenent the
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Governor's Executive Order wll have been for
not and we will invite additional uncertainty
in this programand its processes.

The Loui siana constitution only provides
| TEP authority to two bodies, the Board of
Comrerce and Industry and the Governor, both
of which nust make tough decisions, as the
constitution states, which are deened in the
best interest of this State. To nmake this
explicitly clear, BC& appeal resolution nmade
this explicitly clear, yet Nola still believes
It can have its own sets of rules. Bottom
line if Nola wants to have the sane rights as
everybody el se, then Nola needs to follow the
sane rul es as everybody el se; neaning, until
Nola gets in line with BC& rules and the rest
of this State, the Board of Commerce and
| ndustry and the Governor shoul d deem any and

all Nola ITEP denials as invalid. Thank you

very nuch.
Chris?
VR, TODARO

Good norning. Thank you for the tine.
My nane is Chris Todaro. |'mthe Vice

Presi dent of Coffee Qperations at the J. M
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Smucker Conpany, the parent conpany for the
Fol ger Coffee Conpany. | oversee our coffee's
operations, which are consolidated to our
three locations in New Ol eans.

| was born and raised in New Ol eans. |
started ny professional career 35 years ago at
the Folgers Od Gentilly Road facility.
Across these 35 years, |'ve been directly and
indirectly connected to Fol ger operations both
at New Ol eans and other | ocations across the
United States. Through ny role, | had a
chance to return to the area to offer support
followm ng Hurricane Katrina, and |
ent husi astically took advantage of the
opportunity to relocate back hone. Follow ng
the tragedy, our conpany was proactive in
supporting the comunity and our enpl oyees
of fering many opportunities on tenporary
housi ng, extended benefits to those who were
di spl aced. W are proudly one of the first
busi nesses to open up after that event.
Wthin three weeks, we were operating in our
facility at the Ad Gentilly facility.

|"m here today to personally solicit your

support and assistance with the chall enges
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we' ve had around our | TEP application to share
a bit nore about who we are. The story of
Fol gers brand in New Ol eans goes back to 1963
when we first began roasting our coffee in New
Oleans. Since that tine, we've continued to
I nvest in grow ng the business, grow ng our
physical footprint in the area, and grow ng
our role in the comunity. In 2010, we
consolidated our entire coffee operation of
manufacturing to New Ol eans foll ow ng an
active recruitnent by representatives fromthe
State of Louisiana and the Gty of New
Ol eans, including offering incentive prograns
we have in place today reinforcing and
extendi ng a | ong-standing rel ati onshi p between
our brand, our conpany, and the State of
Loui siana, the Gty of New Ol eans. Since
we' ve consol i dated our operations, we've
I nvested tens of mllions of dollars to
upgrade and noderni ze our facility.
Additionally, our commtnent to New
Ol eans and investnents in our facilities have
created hundreds of jobs, hel ped diversify the
| ocal econony, and generated revenue for the

community. Today, we have nearly 700
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enpl oyees at our three New Orleans facilities

with a total payroll of nore than $62 nmillion

during the cal endar year 2022. To put that in
context, our payroll has increased 140 percent
since we've consolidated our coffee

manuf acturing operations to the Gty of New

O | eans.

We continue to prioritize our enpl oyees
and offer them a work environnment that
supports their needs. |In fact, our efforts
have made us one of the nost popul ar enpl oyers
in the area. This cones to life in nmany ways
i ncludi ng offering higher wages and benefits
as conpared to other enployers of our scale in
the City. Qur hourly rate starts at $22 an
hour and goes up to $40 per hour wth
ext ensi ve benefits including nedical, dental,
vision, 401K with enployer match, bereavenent
pay. W' ve continued to enhance our benefits
over the years including enhanci ng parental
| eave and paid tine off. Additionally, we
have accel erated our inclusion in diversity
strategies to support gender and diversity
I ncl usi on across our organization.

We are proud to be joined today by a few
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of our enployees here in New Ol eans who
represent the trenendous workforce we have, a
wor kforce that is notivated by the opportunity
to have a career and not just a job, the
wor kf orce that includes many enpl oyees who
have been with us for decades, and many whose
famlies have been wth the conpany for
generations. Through those enpl oyees with us
today and for all those who support our
business in this comunity, | personally thank
you. Qur focus on securing the best talent is
I n service of supporting our consuners, who
trust us as a leader in the at-hone coffee
category. To put this in greater context,
nore Anericans start their norning at hone
with a cup of coffee fromone of our brands
than any other. And with that and with a hone
cof fee consunption at its highest |level in
sone tinme, the consuner is relying on trusted
cof fee brands nore than ever. Qur dedicated
New O | eans enpl oyees deliver on that need
every singl e day.

In addition to producing Fol gers, the
team delivers grow ng Dunkin at honme and Cafe

Bustel o brands conbi ned as one of the | argest
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cof fee conmpanies in the world is manufactured
in the State of Louisiana and the Gty of New
Oleans. Wile we are proud on how we
continue to support our enployees and trust we
have earned anong our consumers, we're even
prouder of the work we do here in the

communi ty.

In addition to being a | eadi ng enpl oyer
and one of the top |ocal property taxpayers,
our incredibly passionate and dedi cat ed
enpl oyees have played a neaningful role in
supporting this area. Here are just a few
exanples: Follow ng Katrina, Snucker New
Ol eans teamwas the | eading partici pant
annually in the Novenber to Renenber work
coordi nated by Habitat for Humanity. This
program was focused on rebuil ding hones
i npacted. Qur teamaided in the construction
of nore than a hundred honmes over the course
of several years. |In addition, on the day we
announced our consolidation, the conpany
contributed a mllion dollars to United Way of
Greater New Ol eans for the continued recovery
and rebuilding efforts. | add this conmtnent

was i nplenmental to a |long-standing nulti-year

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 58

hi story of our enployees in the conpany giving
to the United Way and ot her nonprofits in the
ar ea.

Qur facility was also active in
supporting the comunity at the outset of the
pandem c. Along wth enhancing safety
measures to ensure the health of our
enpl oyees, we supported a range of efforts
i ncluding providing neals to first responders
keepi ng us safe and donating to the Restaurant
Wrker Relief Fund to aid our nei ghbors who
struggled financially as custoners were forced
to stay hone.

In addition to these specific exanpl es,
we' ve consistently offered contributions to
| ocal schools, nursing hones, nmmjor comunity
events, and other kid and child rel ated
activities to support key occasions. As we
continue to donate funding, product and
volunteer tine to organi zati ons across the
community that address the needs to provide
critical support, it's what we do. Pl ease
know that we take our role as |eaders in the
great comunity very seriously. As you

consi der these applications, we hope that you
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can appreciate our passion to continue to
build in New Ol eans.

Qur | TEP applications presented a package
of capital projects across nultiple
facilities, all to achieve a sinple, yet
powerful goal, to increase our expansion and
production capability which will result in
greater returns to the local comunity. To be
clear, we do understand this is a very conpl ex
matter, but there are al so sone m sconceptions
|"d like to take the opportunity to clarify
for the Commttee.

There's been sone public comrentary that
we are not paying the taxes we owe, which is
not accurate. W have tinely paid every
property tax invoice issued to date. W' ve
consistently been a top ten property taxpayer
since as far back as 2017. | mght add,
bef ore we consolidated, we were not in the top
ten. Per New Ol eans 2021 audited financi al
statenent, we were the fourth |argest property
taxpayer in New Ol eans. So since
consolidation, we've gone fromnot being in
the top ten to a top -- within the top five in

nunber four. There's been suggestions that we
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have not appropriately addressed the process
| aid before us. Again, this is not an
accurate representation. Throughout this
process, we have followed the | TEP procedures
as presented to us.

G ven our confidence in the fact our |ITEP
applications should be granted, we've sinply
preserved our appeal rights throughout the
process and will continue to do so until a
final decision is made. To reiterate, the
econom ¢ incentives offered through | TEP and
presented us by the State of Louisiana were a
very inportant consideration in our decision
to consolidate our coffee operations to New
Oleans. To this end, all of our ITEP
applications in 2010 -- from 2010 t hrough 2015
wer e approved w thout incident; nunber two,
all of our |ITEP issues are Post-Executive
Order applications that do not align with the
| ocal eligibility criteria. | wll repeat, in
2005, we nmade a decision to stay in the State
of Louisiana and rebuild. 1In 2010, wth your
hel p, we decided to invest and grow, which we
have.

We are incredibly proud to be a part of
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the comunity and appreciative of the support
we have received. W look forward to
continuing to be a | eading nenber in the area
whi | e supporting the needs of our fell ow

residents, our famlies, our friends, our

enpl oyees, as we have for over 60 years. In
closing, I'd like to again thank the Committee
for your tinme and willingness to hear our

appeal today. W believe the facts are
straight forward. Based on the contractual
details of the Cooperative Endeavor Agreenent
we signed when we consol i dated our coffee
operations to New Ol eans, we are confident
that our | TEP application should be granted.
We have not only fulfilled, but far exceeded
our annual job and payroll obligations under
the agreenent. Additionally, we have foll owed
the outline of the I TEP application process
and have no outstanding tax debt or previous
filings under review.

I n summation, we ask that you send our
| TEP applications to the Governor wwth a
recomendati on for approval given that we have
successfully nmet eligibility criteria. Wth

that, | thank you for your tine and attention.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you very much. One housekeepi ng

thing, but |I do have sone foll omup question
what was the contract nunber that you said
left out? | did not wite it down.
MB. CHENG

It was -- one of the nunbers was m ssi

out of the contract nunber, 20190391. Ont
agenda, it says 2013031.
CHAl RMAN JONES:
Ch, it's just transposed.
MS. CHENG
They're just m ssing the nine.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

| -- thank you. There's no additional
contract, it's just the contract that's
m s- nunber ed.

MS. CHENG

That's correct.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ckay. Got it. Thank you. Wat |I'm
trying to wap ny head around just a little
bit, when you originally and -- first of al
the decision to relocate your entire operat

into Louisiana, into New Ol eans was huge,

S,

was

ng
he

I,
i on

and
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we thank you for that because it's when |

| earned -- when | |earned that Fol gers was
made in New Orleans. | thought that's pretty
cool actually rather than anywhere el se, you
know. What |I'mtrying to understand is, the
original application, the original i1dea of
what you were going to do in New Ol eans when
you signed the Cooperative Endeavor Agreenment
in 2010, did that include the contract nunbers
that are before us today?

I n other words, have you conpleted the
original set of expansion or work that you
were going to do? And is this sonething
additional or was this part of what you
originally planned to do when you rel ocat ed
everything to New Ol eans; am | making nyself
cl ear?

MR TODARO

| believe so.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Pull the mc alittle bit closer to you,
pl ease. |'msorry.
MR TODARO

So --

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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It wll pull. Just pull it.
MR, TODARO

The original was conpleted, and thus, the
addi ti onal ones being asked are buil ding upon
the fact that we are fully consolidated here
within the Gty of New Ol eans and continue to
expand that business in the footprint of our
busi nesses. As we have acquired ot her brands,
we have brought that business into New
Oleans. So a perfect exanple would be, we
make a coffee brand called Cafe Bustelo. It
was originally produced in Mam, Florida.
That business is now produced in the Gty of
New Ol eans, which the additional |TEP
applications were hel pi ng enabl e.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. M. Leonard?
MR, LEONARD:

Excuse ne, Chairman.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Yes, sSir?
MR, LEONARD:

The Cooperative Endeavor Agreenent period
termis from 2010 through 2020. Al of the

I nvestnent job and payroll requirenents
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outlined in that agreenent run through that
term These investnents were all nade during
the termof that agreenent, in which the
obligations that were laid out and that from
the incentives perspective, |ITEP was still
active during that termas well as in the
event had Fol gers been nonconpliant at the
time these investnents were nmade, then they
woul d have still had fallen under the terns of
t hat contract.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

| mnot positive |'m making ny question
clear; either that or I'mnot clear on the
answer. WAs the original investnent in 2010,
was that conpleted and these contracts are
addi ti onal expansions or was everything
conpl eted and now this is sonething that was
devel oped subsequent to the 2010 plans? These
contracts, were they subsequent? Wre they
devel oped subsequent to the 2010 plans or were
they part of the original plan?
MR TODARO

They're part of the original plan as we
were the single source manufacturing now So

as we built in 2010 consolidating all the
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operations, the idea fromgoing forward is any
new busi ness that we would bring into the
portfolio would then subsequently be produced
in New Ol eans as a consolidation opportunity,
as | nentioned. And then fitting that in
under the 10-year agreenent that we nade in
2010, that was our going-in position as we did
this. So any decision we've nade, we | ook at
sourcing it in New Oleans as the ultimate
outconme and bringing that business el sewhere
where it's being manufactured to New Ol eans.
As | nmentioned, the one with closing a
facility in Mam , Florida and noving that
manuf acturing to New Ol eans occurred in that
period of tine.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

| feel |ike, and respectively, | feel
like y'all are naking argunents to ne instead
of answering ny questions. So |I'mgoing to
try one nore tine. | think the original

contract in 2010 envi si oned about a $69

mllion investnent. Are these contracts part
of that original $69 mllion investnment or are
t hese over and above the $69 mllion

I nvest nent ?
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MR TODARO

These are over and above, sir.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right.

MR. TODARO
Yes.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ckay. So these contracts were
contenpl ated after you made the decision to
come and you entered into the Cooperative
Endeavor Agreenent ?

MR. TODARO

Correct.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

So this is sonething that was devel oped
subsequent to your decision to conme here?
MR, LEONARD:

(Nods head.)

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ckay. That's what |I'mtrying to get to.
Thank you very nuch. Do you know when you
made the application to the Gty of New
Ol eans for approval of the -- or let ne ask
it a different way.

Did you make any application to the Cty
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of New Ol eans for approval of these
contracts?
MR TODARO

Very techni cal question.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

(kay. Let ne help you out.
MR TODARO

Yes, Sir.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

O did the notice to New Oleans and did
New Ol eans's subsequent reaction to the
notice cone from LED? Because, normally --
let me help you out. Nornmally, what happens,
we approve contracts, we approve contracts and
LED sends a notice to the | ocals saying, we've
got these contracts before us, you have X
nunber of days to respond. So what |'m asking
Is, did you all file any applications with the
City of New Oleans or did New Ol eans find
out about these progranms through LED?
MR, LEONARD:

| cannot speak for New Ol eans, but we
filed all of the 2017, 2018, and 2019
applications after the Board of Conmerce and

| ndustry with the Gty of New Ol eans. The
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Cty of New Ol eans advi sed us that the 2017
and the 2018 applications were not necessary
and only accepted the 2019 applications for

| TEP.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

And what were the reasons given for being
not necessary?
MR, LEONARD:

The City of New Ol eans indicated that
their resolution that they had passed was not
applicable to the 2017 and 2018 applicati ons.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

When you say resolution, are you talking
about the ordi nance?

MR, LEONARD:

Forgive nme. Correct, | stand corrected,
t he ordi nance.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

And this is the ordinance that created
the criteria that is being argued as nore
stringent than the | TEP requirenents?

MR. LEONARD:

That is correct.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you.
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MR, LEONARD:

The ordi nance was passed in 2018. |t was
2020 when the applications for all years, '17,
'18, and '19 went before the Council. And the
ordi nance was referenced in the decisions
rendered by the Council as all of the criteria
t hat needed to be net.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Were there any di scussions between
Fol gers and the Gty of New Ol eans or the
School Board or any of the local entities
about what the expansion plans were or about
what you were intending to do under these
contracts before you cane to LED?
MR, TODARO

| was -- |'mnot aware.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

You' re not aware of any neetings that
happened?
MR. TODARO

| was -- at that tinme, | was not in this
role. We can find out that answer fromthe
I ndi vi dual s who were here at the tine, but I
don't have that answer currently with ne. |

don't know.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. Al right. Al right. 1'mgoing
to take a tine out and see if there's any
ot her Board Menbers that have questions or
comments for the Folgers folks. W have
pl enty of fol ks who want to speak on this
I ssue, and | apol ogize for nonopolizing it so
far, but there were sone things | needed to
get clear in ny mnd.

M. Holley?

MR, HOLLEY:

Yes, sir. Can you hear ne?
MR TODARO

Yes.

MR, HOLLEY:

Good. Are you contending that the six
| TEP approval s that was made by this Board
fall under the CEA agreenent?

MR LEONARD:

Yes, sir.
MR, HOLLEY:

And what is your authority for that
belief or opinion, sinply because it was for
ten years?

VR, LEONARD:
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Yes, sir.
VMR, HOLLEY:
Have you had an opportunity to review the

CEA before com ng here today?

MR, LEONARD:
Yes, sir.
MR. HOLLEY:

Then you nmust be famliar with, if | can
get toit, or Article IV, | believe, yes,
Article IV, Section 4.01, LED Obligations.

And it's only two paragraphs, so I'll read it
In case you don't renenber it. GO Zone Bonds,
based on your representations nade by the
conpany, the conpany should qualify for the
@ul f Qpportunity Zone Bond program and LED
will assist with the application process in
support approved by the Comm ssion of the
conpany's application in accordance with the
programrul es, et cetera.

Second paragraph: Industrial Property
Tax Exenption, based upon representati ons nade
by the conpany that facilities should qualify
for the Industrial Property Tax Exenpti on.
Loui si ana Constitution Article VII, Section

21f, and LED agrees to support approval by
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BC& and the Governor of the conpany's
applications therefore.

It says the word should. | didn't read
the word shall. So are you saying that the
Board shoul d approve obligates this Board to
go beyond its rules and regul ations and, in
particular, this contract?

MR, LEONARD:

No, sir. Qur positionis there was a
recruitnment effort by the Louisiana Depart nent
of Econom c Devel opnent to attract Folgers to
New Ol eans to expand and consolidate its
operations. The incentive package that was
offered to induce that investnent included the
| ndustrial Property Tax Exenption and it
i ncl uded the 10-year termin which that
i ncentive would be offered and avail able for
the conpany to utilize.

The conpany enbarked on this agreenent
during the first couple of, |I think the first
five years of the agreenent pursuing the
| ndustrial Tax Exenption Program w t hout
I ncident. Every application had been
approved. And | would believe that there

woul d be a case that there was sone | evel of
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reliance by Fol gers that the Cooperative
Endeavor Agreenent termwas open. It had been
recei ving approvals for all of its | TEPs.

W had a change in the programrul es and
procedures, and we are stipulating that the
rules -- I'll say the ordinance of the Cty
Councils, the resolution of the School Board
of Orleans, and the procedure that states that
the Sheriff shall follow the recommendati ons
of the Council are the tripw res that caused
Fol gers to not receive the | ocal approvals for
their | TEPs; because when only the Board of
Comrerce and Industry rules were appli ed,
their applications were approved. It was not
until we ran into |ocal rules and regul ations
that had eligibility requirenments, which one
of them was used as a hammer agai nst us
t hrough the local process; and that is, in the
Board of Commerce and Industry rules, a
conpany can file in advance, spend its noney,
and so long as it files its application within
90 days of finishing the project, they are
still deened tinely. They are still deened
able to pursue ITEP. That is how the program

ran very consistently prior to the Executive
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O der.

The New Ol eans rule says you can't do
that. You nust first, before you file your
advanced notification, you nust go file a
| ocal notice of interest with Ol eans Pari sh,
then go file your advanced application, then
go start the State process. W could not do
that with the '18 and ' 19 applicati ons because
this conmpany was follow ng BC& rules. So we
ran smack dab into whether they claimin their
resolutions, they usually not -- it was not
how t hey wanted their programrun at any | evel
what soever .

The 2019 applications were filed in
accordance with every | ocal procedure and
guideline of Oleans Parish, and it was deened
deni ed because it didn't neet the criteria
that they established. Al "17, '18, and ' 19
applications were unani nously approved by this
Board because they net the Board of Commerce
and Industry rules and regulations. So the
spirit of the arrangenent, Folgers, y'all have
operations around the State, we want you here
in Louisiana, we'll incentivize you to close

facilities, nove jobs, add payroll, bring that
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here; and in return, we have these incentives
that we're going to offer you.

Qur position is is that that worked.

Fol gers cane. They not only net the

$60 mllion they of fered when they entered in
this deal, they far exceeded it by tens of
mllions of dollars. They were not a top
taxpayer in the parish before this. There are
only three conpanies that pay nore property
taxes than Fol gers since LED recruited this
conpany to performits duties to bring new

I nvestnments and jobs to this State. Al we're
asking is that during the termof this
agreenent, we honor the spirit of the

I ncentive arrangenents that were offered.

MR, HOLLEY:

When the contract was entered into in
2010, the Executive Order did not exist at
that tine.

MR, LEONARD:

That is correct.
MR, HOLLEY:

Do you contend that this property subject
to these six I TEP exenptions is or is not

subject to the Executive Order?
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MR, LEONARD:

|'"mgoing to take the liberty of opinion.
So when the Executive Order was issued, the
Executive Order clearly delineated a line in
the sand. As y'all see in your agendas, we
have Pre Executive Order applications that
fall under a certain set of rules, they don't
have | ocal approvals. W have Post Executive
Order applications that cone before this Board
that nmust follow the |ocal.

In our opinion, we just feel this
Cooper ati ve Endeavor Agreenent, which is an
agreenent between this conpany and the State
of Loui siana probably shoul d have been part of
t hat grandfather status because there had
al ready been a commtnent made to this
conpany, and they should have been treated in
the Pre Executive Order posture, but they have
not been. That did not land in the rules.
That is not the case. So we had to follow
Post Executive Order rules and procedures,
whi ch | anded us unani nously here with the
Board of Commerce and Industry rules, but we
ran afoul of the rules that Ol eans Parish

governi ng bodi es had intact that far exceed
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the rules that this Board utilizes to approve.
MR HOLLEY:
One or two nore questions. |Is the

property on the tax rolls today?

MR, LEONARD:
No, sir.
MR HOLLEY:
And why not ?
MR LEONARD:
If -- it's a Catch 22, quite frankly.
MR, HOLLEY:

| didn't nean it that way.
MR, LEONARD:

Yes, sir, not your question, but putting
property taxes on the rolls would cause
Folgers to lose their right to pursue appeal
and to have an opportunity to have this
exenption. So there has been a very strong
effort to keep and preserve the rights of
Fol gers to have our day here before you so we
could have a final ruling here.

When the tax assessor played -- nmde an
effort to place these assets -- this property
on the rolls last summer, all right, there --

we went to court. OCkay. And we went to court
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in Oleans Parish to preserve our rights to
have our opportunities to appeal to this
Board. It was determ ned that, and we have
counsel here who can speak nore specifically,
but the gist of what happened is the Court
ruled to all ow Fol gers property to remain off
of the rolls. Al of the other property in
Ol eans Parish that was taxable | anded on the
rolls so that Ol eans Parish could receive
their revenue. That opinion, which | think
was very inportant, was appeal ed through the
First Court of Appeals in the area, it was
denied. Another wit was issued to the
Suprene Court of Louisiana, and that wit was
deni ed.

So in the decision by the Ol eans Parish
Court, it was determ ned that the Board of
Comrerce and Industry is the proper
jurisdiction for handling this matter and not
the courts. And they were allow ng the
property to not be taxed until a resol ution
coul d be had by this Board.

MR HOLLEY:
| s there any reason you could not have

paid it under protest? |Is that from| egal
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advi ce or what's the reason for that?
MR, LEONARD:

Yes, sir. As you may recall, |last Board
neeting, we had a case before here, the Sierra
Frac case where they actually did pay under
protest, and they | ost those years of
exenpti on.

MR, HOLLEY:

And ny final question, initially, when
the I ndustrial Tax Exenption Program was given
to you back in 2010, was there an estimation
at that tine of the tax savings that would be
made to Fol gers?

MR, LEONARD:
|"msure there was, but |'m not aware of

t hat nunber, sir.

MR HOLLEY:
Does 17.8 mllion sound about correct?
MR. LEONARD:

| don't have any reference for that, and

| apol ogi ze.
MR HOLLEY:
That's all | have, M. Chairman.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
M. Ml nnis?
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MR, MCI NNl S:

Thank you, M. Chairman. Sir, wthout
the investnent fromthe 2010 CEA, would you
have been able to nake the investnents in
these six contracts?

MR TODARO

| f | understand your question correctly,

if we hadn't nmade the investnent in 2010, and

again, the investnent was greatly influenced

by the Cooperative Agreenent, |I'm-- |'m not
sure we would -- go ahead. |'msorry.
MR. MCI NN S:

The whol e idea of this recruitnent and
for you guys consolidating your conpany in an
area, forget about New Ol eans and forget
about anywhere el se, was to expand your

conpany, was to be able to offer these

products is what |'m seeing sitting here. And

so that original plan is com ng together with

t hese six i nvestnents --

MR TODARO
Yes, sir.
MR. MCI NNl S:

-- 1in the State of Loui si ana.
MR. TODARO
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Correct. And if there's no 2010, there's
no telling if there had been anythi ng past
t hat .
MR. MCI NNl S:

Right. So the original notice was that
2010 CEA for your next neeting. If, you know,
City Council wants to ask or create a rule of
some notice of investnent to create
consi stency for conpanies |ike yours, |arge,
who are conpeting within thensel ves nmuch | ess
fromstate to state fromParish to Parish to
be consistent, you would have al nbst had to
know i f you were on the giving end of this
exenption that these things were going to
happen.
MR. TODARO

It's --
MR. MCI NNI S:

That agreenent --

MR, TODARO
Yes.
MR. MCI NN S:

-- to nme, seens |ike | would have
expected you as a conpany to do these type of

t hi ngs and you shoul d have expected from ne,
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if I"'mthe Gty of New Ol eans, to give you
the sane exenptions going forward with
everything el se being everything having been
conplied to, in which | believe everything was
conplied, except for that ordinance fromthe
City of New Ol eans.

MR LEONARD:

Correct. And in furtherance to this,
fromthe Center Daily Newspaper, Novenber 15,
2013, | read: Snuckers Coffee production was
consolidated to the New Ol eans area as part
of a $70 mllion nove announced in 2010
closing plants in Kansas City, M ssouri and
Sher man, Texas.

That coul d have been New Ol eans,
Loui si ana had one of those other facilities
had been chosen for the consolidation.

Ol eans won the consolidation conpetitive
battle. In the analysis as to where to put
this site, Louisiana put a very conpetitive
offer, a very conpelling offer that included

| TEP as part of its incentive and recruitnent
package. As a result, Louisiana is not |isted
as a location where sonething was cl osed.

Loui si ana has taken a facility that didn't hit
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the statistical property tax neters in Ol eans

Parish to be the fourth |argest payer in the
Cty.

There are only three conpani es that pay
nore property tax. And that is a direct
result of the initial recruitnment and then
Fol gers continued built and conti nued
i nvestnent into the Parish.

MR. MCI NNI S:

| believe in the Executive Order. |
believe in the local control. | wouldn't be
up here if | wasn't the Parish president.

MR, LEONARD:

Yes, sir.
MR. MCI NNI S:

So but just like in nmy Parish, you know,
we meke m stakes at the |ocal |evel,
especially in the begi nning phases of this
Executive Order. So, you know, | just think
that this was a m stake maybe on both ends.
And ny good friends submtted a |etter today.
But | think in the best interest of this
Board, that area, nmany of those 700 j obs
reside in ny Parish. And for ne, it wouldn't

be a good thing if we did not approve this
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today. Thank you, sir.
MR, LEONARD:

Yes, sir.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any ot her questions or comments for the
fol ks from Fol gers fromthe Board?

M. -- Senator Allain?

SENATOR ALLAI' N

Yeah, so a | ot has been tal ked about the
commtnment of this State. Does the Secretary
care to comment or clarify what the comm tnent
of the State was in 2010, and did that extend
to the contracts? |In your opinion, does that
extend to the contracts that we have before
us?

SECRETARY Pl ERSON:

Don Pi erson, Secretary of Louisiana
Econom ¢ Devel opnent. Senator, thank you for
the question. Taking a | ook back at what was
negoti at ed Cooperati ve Endeavor Agreenent,
what woul d the State provide, what woul d
Fol gers provide, and then eventually comng to
a contract, a handshake, a CEA and what was
enuner ated was that a conprehensive package, a

very attractive package was put on the table.
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As M. Leonard correctly points out, Louisiana
won the conpetition, and the two parties had
an obligation to each other. Louisiana's
package was val ued at roughly $53 mllion. W
were asking for two things: One, an
investment of at |east $69 million; but nore
I nportantly, and why Econom c Devel opnent
perforns its inportant role was the assurances
t hat Fol gers woul d enpl oy nore than 500 peopl e
over the follow ng 10-year period and produce
roughly an average sake of $35 mllion a year
in payroll for each one of those 10 years.
That was 2011 t hrough 2020.

| think the State perforned its
obligations. | think the record will reflect
that the initial investnent went under |TEP
approved by this Board, and that the financial
benefits of that were enjoyed by Fol gers.
Beyond that, their success, which one could
argue the State played a role in, allowed them
to make additional investnents. And those
I nvestnents are the ones that are being
consi dered here today by this Board.
SENATOR ALLAI' N

So does LED have an opinion on the ones
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before the Board today? Was that part of the
ori gi nal obligation, whether --
SECRETARY Pl ERSON:

There was an issue of obligation. W
went back and we woul d cl awback agai nst
Fol gers shoul d they have only cone with
$50 million of investnent as opposed to what
the requirenents were, or if they only
enpl oyed 400 peopl e instead of the nunbers
that were directed. So in ternms of this
agreenent, | think all the obligations were
nmet by the parties. And these additi onal
I nvestnents were nmade -- they were nmade post
Executive Order. So it's in the public record
that there will be a voice by the | ocal
comuni ties.

W nmay or may not |i ke what | ocal
governing authorities choose to either bases,
but | ocal governing authorities do a | ot of
things. They make sign ordi nances, they make
zoni ng, they nmake the | and use ordi nances.
And so we respect that, and | think that was a
requi renent that canme forward fromthe
Governor was to respect what the Parish

President wants in his Parish. W work in all

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 88

64, and it's not uniformthroughout the State.
That's just a part of the uniqueness of our
denocr acy.

So | think the issues before the Board
today are not conpletely tied to the previous
Cooper ative Endeavor Agreenent in which all
parties executed their responsibilities.
SENATOR ALLAI' N

But was there -- it seens there was an
inplied obligation if they nade an additi onal
comm tnent, then that would -- it would
continue in the ITEP program as was stated
before or not?

SECRETARY Pl ERSON:

In order for that to be a part of this
di scussion, and we do this with some of our
existing industry, we sit down and we have a
conversati on about proposed expansion. And
sonetimes we work out additional incentive
prograns related to those and enunerate what
these additional investnents are. Now, they
don't have to cone to us, so they don't always
do that. And they can use firns that do this
type of consulting work to file the

appropri ate papers and be advi sed of the
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current conditions under which they woul d ask
for these exenptions. But there was not, to

nmy know edge, a proposed path forward that was

executed wwth Folgers. | could have m ssed
sone of that. | was not the Secretary at the
tinme.

SENATOR ALLAI N

| understand. Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. | have a question and | think
it's for you, M. Leonard. Reference has been
made to this Cooperative Endeavor Agreenent
and the word support; LED should, not shall,
but shoul d support. Wat do you think that
word nmeans, support?

MR, LEONARD:

Very broad term |t's our opinion that
t he Cooperative Endeavor Agreenent |aid out
m ni mum expectations for Folgers to neet,
which is where the $60 m | lion investnent
cones from and that had Fol gers not net that
m ni mum i nvest nent, they woul d have been
penal i zed. To not approve an | TEP for
exceeding $60 mllion appears to also be a

penalty inits own form Should neans and to
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support, we received full support for every

| TEP prior to the Executive Order. | do
bel i eve support woul d have been grandfat hering
us as part of the Executive Order process that
we know we have a contract with this conpany
and we've commtted to support |ITEP and we're
going to have you adhere to the pre Executive
Orders |ike other folks, who had advanced
notifications fil ed.

Al'so, | think support could have been
havi ng fol ks hel ping Ol eans Parish understand
t hey have a uni que project com ng before them
for approval, and that we do have an agreenent
and | ook at all the great things that this
conpany has done. And your rules are outside
of the BC& rules and help us | obby and get
t he support needed at the local level. So
there's -- it's a broad term It was not
specifically spelled out in this agreenent,
but our position is nore along the |lines of
reliance on the past of we have an agreenent,
it's worked perfectly in the past. W are
continuing to build off our investnents in the
future, and we have continued as Folgers to do

all the sane things that we've done step by
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step with the investnents and the jobs to
receive | TEP approvals in hopes that we would
in the future.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

So are you saying that support woul d have
I ncl uded sone decision by this Board to
grandfather you into the preEO rules? 1Is that
what you' re sayi ng?

MR LEONARD:

This is the Board of Conmerce and
| ndustry, which is not a part of the
Cooper ati ve Endeavor Agreenent.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

That's where |' m goi ng.
MR, LEONARD:

Yes, sir, but | was not aware of any
recommendati on from any other bodies to do so,
whi ch coul d have been deened a form of
support .

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Coul d Fol gers have avoided this issue
entirely by filing advanced notifications so
as to preclude the necessity of follow ng
under the post EO rul es?

VR, LEONARD:
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That definitely woul d have been an option
for Folgers, but that would have been contrary
to the way they had utilized the programfor
every year prior to the changes that were
comng into place.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

But it was an option avail able?
MR, LEONARD:

Yes, sir, it was an option for everybody.
Yes, sir.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ckay. These applications and their only
appearance before this Board, they were
approved?

MR, LEONARD:

| --
CHAI RMAN JONES:

When these applications originally cane
to this Board, this Board approved those
appl i cations.

MR, LEONARD:

Unani nousl y.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Unani nousl y.

VR, LEONARD:
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Yes, sir.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

That woul d be deened support.
MR, LEONARD:

Absol utely. And LED supported us through
t hat process.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

Ckay. | guess what |'"'mwestling with is
| don't know how we have not supported, how

LED and the Board of Commerce and | ndustry

have not been supportive of Folgers. | don't
understand that contingent frankly. | want to
better understand. | don't understand how we

have not been conpliant with the contract. |
don't understand how we, how LED and the Board
of Comrerce and Industry have not been
supportive of Folgers up to this point.

MR, LEONARD:

For the record, | don't believe that is a
position that is being presented. | think our
position is we are asking for your continued
support at this tine.

CHAI RMAN JONES:
Ckay. Al right. GOay. So we're in

agreenent, we have been supportive thus far?
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MR LEONARD:

A hundred percent, yes, sir.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you.

MR, LEONARD:
Yes, sir.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

And we may have gone the | ong way around
that barn, but | think we got there.
MR, LEONARD:

Yes, Sir.

CHAl RMAN JONES:

Al'l right. Any other questions or
comments fromthe Board Menbers for Fol gers
fol ks?

Now, | know we have a |ot of fol ks who
had signed up to coment in favor of this
special request. | have sonme 31 cards. |
think 1"ve -- | don't want to inpinge on
anybody's right to express thensel ves, but
neither do | want to parade 31 people across
the neeting that's going to say the exact sane
thing. | would welcone the opportunity for
one person who nay be a representative of the

31, if that would be okay, but I'm-- |'"m not
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inclined to protract this neeting by having 31
peopl e parade and say, | support Fol gers.

|s that -- is there -- M. Leonard, do
you know of soneone that could cone speak and
basically surm se what all 31 of these folks
are going to say?

MR LEONARD:

Fol gers has a nunber of enpl oyees and
friends who have filed cards and have j ust
asked to have the cards read as support into
the record for this application.

CHAl RMAN JONES:

Ckay. Al right. Well, let's do that
then. W have Ms. Mary Anne Mashaft actually
speaki ng against. Forgive ne, this is the
W ong st ack.

M. Chris Todaro is speaking for,

Ms. Cheryl Kornick is speaking for, M. Chad
Renz, R-E-N-Z, speaking for, Tam ka Stansberry
speaking for, N gel Garbutt speaking for, Dave
Gower speaking for, Tracy Ancar, | hope |I'm
pronounci ng sone of these nanes correctly,
forgive ne if I'mnot, speaking for, Law ence
GQuerra speaking for, Florence Videau speaking

for, Robinique LeBeouf speaking for, |I'm
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having a difficult tinme reading, Dave Brokoir,
| believe, forgive ne if |'mnot pronouncing
correctly, Kenneth Jones speaking for, G enn
Vi nson speaking for, Donald Al phonso speaking
for, Shauna Ewens, Gerard French, Evette
Rogers, Gene Col lins, Joyclyn Thonpson,

Mat t hew H as perhaps, |'msorry, Pavina
Gonzal ez- Qui roga, Nathan Mason, Jeanette
Knudsen, Jill Sm ey, Katherine Kehres, Chad
Dyer, Christine Herrara, Joe Stanzi ano, Abbey
Linville, Frank Cnlle, |I believe. Those are
the cards | have to speak in favor of the
proj ect.

Forgive ne, these are all opposed, we'll
cone to those in just a nonent. Al right.
Anyt hing el se fromthe Fol gers group?

Anyt hing in closing?
MR, LEONARD:

No, sir. Thank you for your tine.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you very nuch.

MR. LEONARD:

Just one |last comment to regroup, again,

the reason we are here is because of the | ocal

ordi nances that exceed Board of Commerce and
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| ndustry's rul es.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you very nmuch. Okay. | know we
have a nunber of folks that want to speak in
opposition. Again, we received just -- |
recei ved a packet of information yesterday
afternoon that | did not get to read until
about 5:30 this norning. Thank you very nuch.
| ' ve received anot her packet of information
just now that |'ve obviously not read at all.
So | don't -- anytine y'all are providing this
information to be considered, please give it
to us before the neeting. GCetting it to nme in
the mddle of the neeting is really not
productive in any shape, fashion, or form
because | just don't have tine to sort it.

But do we have soneone to speak agai nst
the special requests? Please cone forward and
state your nane. And, again, | have only four
cards of folks that want to speak agai nst, and
|"'mnot inclined to, again, parade the sane
nmessage over and over again, but we'll see how
we go with this.

Yes, sir. State your nane.

MR, ZERVI GON:
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Thank you. |'m Carlos Luis Zervigon.
|"'mthe Vice President of the Ol eans Parish
School Board here to speak on behalf of the
Boar d.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you.
MR. ZERVI GON:

| believe y'all did receive a letter from
us, all seven nenbers of the School Board
signed it. It was also signed by six of the
seven nenbers of the New Oleans Gty Council
and the Sheriff, all of us asking that you
pl ease not entertain this appeal. W feel
t hat we had devel oped, as you all asked us to,
a process. W very nuch appreciate Fol gers.
We | ove having Folgers in New Ol eans, you
know. In tinme, the nenorial in New Ol eans
has been the biggest area inporting of coffee
in the United States. It's deep within our
culture and our identity. And having Fol gers
there participating as to what they do neans a
great deal to us as a nenber of our comrunity.

And as they stated, they have prospered
i n our area under the programas they've

previously existed. They used, | felt, very
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harsh words to descri be our |ocal el ected body
in their presentation a nonent ago saying a
| ot of things that were not brought up
earlier. And if it was so egregious, |'m not
sure why it wasn't brought up earlier, you
know. | nean | mght not be a |awer, | am an
educator. | know sonet hi ng about governnent.
| know what the needs of our schools are, how
desperately underfunded they are. W nmade a
unani nous deci sion that we would |ike these
taxes paid; that the noney is desperately
needed for us to forego it.

| woul d suggest, at |east fromwhere |
sit, the entire integrity of the idea of a
| ocal stay is at question today. |If we follow
what we're supposed to do, we go through a
process. And now, we're finding ourselves
here in a two-year protracted fight, which to
us feels |Iike delaying and dragging it out,
but | would hope it would be an inevitable
conclusion that the local say is approved. So
| would ask y'all to think about that as well.
So I'mhere representing a unani nous School
Board, unaninmous City Council, and the Sheriff

asking that this appeal be rejected.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Were you part of the School Board when
the criteria were devel oped?
MR ZERVI GON

| was not. | cane on literally the nonth
after the vote was taken. | did attend the
neeting, but | was not on the Board at that
tinme,

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Have you di scussed how the criteria were
devel oped with nenbers of the School Board?
MR ZERVI GON

No. That, | would leave to the staff who
know nore about that.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

My problemis staff is not here today.
MR ZERVI GON:

| know. | know, sir.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

And so I'mtrying to wap ny head around
how t hose criteria were devel oped, but you
don't have any information one way or the
ot her ?

MR ZERVI GON
No. No, | would suggest maybe ot hers who
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woul d follow ne to speak today woul d cone, who
have been working on this for a very long tine
as our partners could probably answer all of
your questions regarding that.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ckay.
MR ZERVI GON:

|"m here representing the | ocal governing
officials, we're just asking you. Please
respect that. That's ny | ane.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Al I want is information. | apol ogi ze.

| don't --
MR ZERVI GON

| know.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

You were just a little bit late to the
gane.

MR ZERVI GON:

Again, but | would just enphasize the
entirety of the School Board and Gty Council
and Sheriff have signed a letter asking. | am
t he one who cane on their behest in order to
make this appeal to you.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Thank you for making the trip. Thank you
very nmnuch.

Any ot her questions or comments fromthe
Boar d?

Thank you very nuch.

Al right. M. Waltzer?
MR WALTZER

Yes, Sir.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

| haven't seen you in too long. | hope
you' re doing well.
MR WALTZER

Yes, it's nice to be back. Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

| ndeed. State your nane and position,
pl ease.
MR WALTZER

My nane is Joel Waltzer, and |I'm a nenber
of and counsel to Together Louisiana. W'd
like to -- 1'd like to nake sone comments
about the Fol ger special appeals. |In 2020, in
the worst of COVID downturn, the New Ol eans
Cty Council and Ol eans Pari sh School Board
voted to reject the six industrial tax

exenption requests filed by Fol ger under the
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2018, inportantly, under the 2018 rules. Now,
Fol ger only appeals now two years after those
| ocal rejections asking the BC& to ignore the
el ected bodies, who still want, unani nously
would i ke to see the revenue. And to deny
them the revenue that they decided, that the
el ected bodi es decided to keep. Folger's
appeal s nust be rejected.

And | have essentially four, what |
bel i eve, are conpelling reasons why | believe
you should reject these. First, the | ocal
| TEP gui delines did not cause the rejection of
Fol gers exenptions. In fact, in the
resol utions denying Fol ger's exenptions, the
Gty Council plainly stated, the Cty Council
expressly finds that ordi nance, the ordi nance,
the guidelines, Cal Nunmber 32472 does not
apply to these applications, which was
initiated prior to the passage of the
| egi sl ative instrunent. The sane | anguage was
i ncluded in the resolutions denying each of
Fol ger's exenption requests. Folger did not
attach these resolutions or provide themto
t he Board.

The resol utions thensel ves explicitly
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state that the denials were based on financi al
need. They sinply could not afford the | oss
of revenue, not connected to any guideline or
any criteria that are separated or allegedly
nmore stringent. This is what the Gty Council
resol ved; whereas, the COVID 19 pandem c in
rejecting these applications, the COVID 19
pandem ¢ has devastated the tourist based
econony of New Ol eans and caused

unpr ecedent ed budgetary crises resulting in
significant revenue shortfalls, Ctyw de
reductions in public services, and nost
devastatingly, the furlough of City enpl oyees;
and whereas, the Gty Council finds that in
the current budgetary climate, the need for
the i medi ate tax revenue to bolster the
Cty's devastated finances significantly

out wei ghs the ancillary econom c benefits
articulated in the application.

So they decided to deny the applications
based on the financial -- their financial
needs. And the Ol eans Parish School Board
resol ved; whereas, the Ol eans Parish School
Board's adm nistrative staff further

determ ned that based on the significantly
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reduced future revenues fromthe M ninmum
Foundati on Program due to the inpacts of the
COVI D- 19 pandem ¢, the School Board cannot
fiscally tolerate the additional |oss of
revenue that would result if said applications
were to be granted. And they did this for
each of the applications before you. The
financial needs of the |ocal governnents in
providing their citizens with essenti al
services was, in fact, the centerpiece of the
| TEP refornms enacted to give thema voi ce.

BCl has affirnmed or abided by the | ocal

deci sions made on this financial need basis in
every other instance overturning the | ocal
decisions here in the face of necessatives
financial circunstances woul d constitute

I nproper special treatnent to Fol gers and

Fol gers al one and contradict BCl's own

pronul gated rul es and policy reforns.

Second, the local guidelines in question,
whil e not the basis of the decision to reject
Fol gers, were established not in a rogue way,
as | believe at least as | heard it suggested
by Fol ger, they were established at the

explicit direction of this Board in its 2018
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rul es.

Rul e 503H1 directed that | ocal governnent
entities for each Parish in consultation with
the Parish Assessor and upon request, the
gui dance fromthe departnent shall make best
efforts, not should, shall nmake best efforts
to devel op reasonabl e gui delines for
application approval and/or denial within a
certain amount of tinme. And that's exactly
what Ol eans Parish governnental entities did.
New Oleans Cty Council and the School Board
in a deliberative process that included LED
adhere to this directive and enacted
guidelines to review | TEP applications. In
the five years that followed, neither LED nor
the BCl has ever placed Ol eans Parish on
notice that any of their guidelines were
unacceptable or conflict with BCl's, which in
fact | believe they don't. Wthout such
noti ce and subsequent refusal by Ol eans
Parish to change, this Board nust not w thdraw
the I ocal discretion granted to Ol eans
Pari sh, which as Folger just told you, would
be the clear effect of sustaining these

appeal s, especially where the requests were
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not caused, were not independently -- they
wer e i ndependently denied for financial
reasons, which | believe is the right reason
according to -- that would satisfy the Board.
You can't wthdraw that |ocal, that |ocal

di scretion, right. And if you wanted to do
that, it would require -- it would require an
express directive. And, frankly, because it's
baked into your regulations, it would require
a rul e maki ng.

Third, Folger m sconstrues the 2010
Cooper ati ve Endeavor Agreenent to suggest that
It is entitled to the ITEPs in question. That
Is sinply not the case. As it nust, as it
must, the 2010 CEA was engaged on a specific
set of investnents which were provided a
specific set of inducenents. Louisiana made
no carte bl anche prom se, as Fol ger suggests,
to approve all |ITEP requests and submtted in
the follow ng 10-year period wthout regard to
the nerit or regulation. That would
effectively yield a 20-year benefit. Further,
the 2010 CEA stated that LED woul d support, as
you' ve al ready noted, and LED and the BCl have

done that at every instance. Louisiana has
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kept all of its prom ses.

The CEA was nade on the SM project to
relocate to this State. The CEA listed the
exact investnents that were going to get
| TEPs. I n the Cooperative Endeavor Agreenent,
Loui siana listed the exact set of inducenents
that it was going to provide. And Loui siana,
in fact, provided every one of those
I nducenents and net all of its obligations
under the CEA. These applications are
separate, and they're filled post-2018, which
Is why they are subject to | ocal discretion.

In fact, only one of the -- LED |isted
in, and you know, | requested records, and LED
listed the | TEPs that were subject to the 2010
CEA as 20100917, 20100917-A and 0917-B, and
20100720 and 0720-A, none of which are before
you today. They've all received their due
treat nent.

And, finally, Folger does not appeal the
Orleans Sheriff's rejection of these IDs. The
Ol eans Parish Sheriff doesn't have
gui delines, right, nor does it dispute that 20
percent of the investnents nmade subject to

t hese applications were taxable in any case.
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Nonet hel ess, Fol ger has not paid any tax on

t hese projects, including the undi sputed
anounts that woul d otherw se be owed, right,

t hough sone finally conpleted as far back as
2018, and a del ay being placed on the taxable
rolls by I believe falsely certifying that its
property was exenpted and/or that these | TEs
wer e pendi ng when, in fact, they were denied

| ong ago as the staff of LED told Fol ger.

And, again, Fol ger clained even here today
that ITEP Rule 517 precluded it from payi ng

t hese undi sputed anmounts, right, Iess they be
automatic, their |TEPs be automatically

deni ed; when in fact, the rul es were changed
under the 2018 regulatory regine. Rule 517
says exactly the opposite Fol ger should not be
rewar ded after waiting two years to file what
we believe is a neritless appeal.

So we have attached several docunents to
our subm ssion to you, including the CEA
There's an exhibit, for instance, the CEA
Exhibit C, right, which I -- and Fol ger
provided to you as well, the CEA Exhibit Cis
entitled Capital Project Budget for Fol ger

Project SM right. | nean the cover letter
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that LED sends said, Louisiana is pleased to
of fer a conprehensive incentive package val ued
at $52.67 mllion for Project SMfor phase one
and $5.3 mllion for phase two for Folger's
key operations center for a total of

$57.9 mllion. The Capital Project Budget for
Project SMwas $69 mllion. 1In the CEA
itself, it says the $69 mllion is -- and
that's exactly what the | TEPs, they already
received were for the $69 mllion in

I nvest nents.

So the CEA has been satisfied by the
State and does not apply here. |t does not
obligate this Board. And, frankly, it does
not and cannot overrule the 2018 regul ati ons
that give |l ocal governnment the discretion and
authority to decide up or down whether or not
they -- you know, whether or not -- whether
they can afford it. And that's exactly what
they did. They decided that they could not
afford these, particularly at the very hei ght
of the COVID pandemc. All right. And so the
other -- let's see.

On, well, I think I'Il et sonmeone el se

tal k about the other docunents. Do you have
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any questions for ne?
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Yes, we do. Let's just be sure we set
the table here. There is no argunent, is
there, that the School Board and the City
Council enacted criteria that are different
fromITEP, fromthe State ITEP criteria; do we
agree on that?

MR WALTZER

Pursuant to Rule 517, they were directed
to and they did in fact nmake their own
gui del i nes.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. Now, Rule 517 -- excuse ne. No,
it's actually Rule 503H2.
MR WALTZER

| " m sorry.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

And what it says is they shoul d nake best
efforts to devel op reasonabl e guidelines; is
that correct?

MR WALTZER
Yes.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
kay. So really what we shoul d debate
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what reasonable neans; is that fair? Wether
these criteria that are nore strict than the
State regul ations, are they reasonable or not;
isn't that really the debate?

MR WALTZER

W could -- to ne, if there is sone
feeling that they are not reasonable, then you
shoul d be working with your |ocal partner to
resol ve those differences, not wthdraw their
ability to have, wi thout notice, w thdraw
their ability to have --

CHAI RVAN JONES:

So it would be your position then that if
we did work with the Cty of New Ol eans and
the School Board to try to educate them of why
their ordinances were not good, that would
have been appropriate? If we had done that,

t hat woul d have been appropri ate?
MR. WALTZER

Prior to yanking their |ocal discretion,
| woul d i magi ne, yes.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

kay. So if we have sonebody cone up and
say, yeah, we did in fact do that, then that

woul d check that box for you?
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MR WALTZER

| don't -- again, the regulations didn't
cause the rejections.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

We'll get to that. Hold on a mnute.
MR WALTZER

New Orleans is fighting --
CHAI RMAN JONES:

We'll get to that in a mnute. Hold on.

We're not there yet.
MR WALTZER

Ckay.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

| know I nove at a slower pace than you
do because |'m-- but just let ne get there.
So the School Board and the City both adopted
criteria that are at least different from
| TEP, and we can argue whet her they are
reasonabl e guidelines or not. Let nme ask you
this, if the City of Lafayette, for exanple
because of its heavy reliance on the fossil
fuel industry decided to enact an ordi nhance
that said, we are only going to grant |ITEP
manuf acturing applications to those

manuf acturing processes that enpl oy fossil
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fuels and none other, would that be a
reasonabl e gui del i ne?
MR WALTZER

It's not one that | would politically
agree with, but "'mnot in a position to say
t hat .
CHAI RVAN JONES:

So | guess then your position then is any
-- any criteria that any nunicipality passes
nmust therefore be okay, because | nean nost
peopl e woul d agree that that is a pretty out
there criteria.
MR WALTZER

Wll, we're not tal king about --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

vell --
MR WALTZER

Yes, they are --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

You can tell nme where the |lines are,
M. Waltzer, but the question is, are there
lines? |s there sonething that's
unreasonabl e? |Is there sonething that's
unr easonabl e?

MR WALTZER
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Well, | nean, and what everybody woul d
normal | y consi der reasonabl e and unreasonabl e,
| have subjective lines and you have
subjective lines. W are not the el ected
bodi es of Oleans Parish. W're not the
el ected bodies of the City of Lafayette. They
have their own reasons and their own policies.
New Orleans is a Honme Rule Charter and they
have their own, for instance, residency
requi renents and ot her things that they do all
the tine. And, you know, | nean |"'mnot in a
position to tell you that, if they can or
cannot - -

CHAI RVAN JONES:

| can't let the Hone Rule Charter comrent

go unaddr essed.
MR WALTZER

Ckay. | nmean it's not your nanual.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Excuse ne, this is -- thisis --
MR WALTZER

Your show.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Exactly. Thank you. Yes, New Oleans is

a Hone Rule Charter. And, frankly, that was
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one of the first questions | asked when this
I ssue cane up, but then | realized The Board
of Comrerce and Industry is also a
constitutionally mandat ed body --
MR WALTZER

Yes, it is.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

-- with powers equally to and at |east in
Jones's opinion, as far as I TEP is concerned
hi gh and above any nunicipality including Hone
Rul e municipalities, because we are
specifically under the Louisiana Constitution
granted the authority to determne only this
Board and the Governor are in power to
determ ne what is in the best interest of the
State as it refers to ITEP, not the Gty of
New Ol eans, not the Cty of Manou.

MR WALTZER

Ri ght .
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Only this Board and the Governor. And so
when the Gty of New Oleans or the Gty of
Laf ayette or the Village of Manbu decide to
pass | TEP requirenents that are different from

what this Board has passed, they have to be
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judged by this Board as whether they're
reasonable. And | think we have to agree, if
sonething is reasonable, there nmust therefore
be sonething that is unreasonable. So what we
have to decided today as a Board are, are
these criteria reasonable? Jones has an

opi ni on, obviously. Oher Board Menbers may

have an opinion, but we'll get to that in a
m nut e.
Next question, first of all, so the

School Board passed criteria. The Gty passed
criteria. The Sheriff, we don't have any idea
whet her he passed criteria or not.
MR WALTZER

He did not.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Vell, we don't know, | nean, if he has a
neeting every norni ng when he shaves. So | --
you know, we don't know what was goi ng on
inside the Sheriff's m nd when he signed the
letter. So we don't know whether he has
criteria or not or do you?

MR WALTZER
It's ny understanding that he does not.

He's based on and the Gty and the School
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Board - -
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Wait a mnute. Wait. Wit.

MR. WALTZER
He -- and | don't know. | haven't spoken
to him

CHAl RMAN JONES:

Al right. GCkay. So that's where |I'm
goi ng.
MR WALTZER

But this Board --
CHAl RMAN JONES:

You don't know the Sheriff.
MR WALTZER

Thi s Board exercised its constitutional
di scretion and provided the | ocal governnents,
right, with the right that is involved here.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

To make reasonabl e gui delines. Ckay.
MR WALTZER

No, and with the right of rejection.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

Yeah, they have the right of rejection.
We'll get to that as well. Now, you said that

the -- let's -- first of all, the School
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Board's resol ution thensel ves, they don't
mention -- they don't nention whether the
criteria are specifically relied on or not.
They cite the -- the School Board basically
says, these are our criteria, they don't need
them oh, by the way, we al so need the noney.
Now, you may argue it the other way. They may
say, we need the noney, and they don't neet
our criteria, is that what the School Board
says; correct?
MR WALTZER

| --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Essentially. | nmean | can read theminto
the record. But, essentially, they say, we're
needi ng the noney, and we're going to reject
t hese, but they also don't neet our criteria.
MR WALTZER

Yes.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. The City, however, is alittle bit
nore clever. The City says, we need the
noney, and we're going to reject it. W also
have these criteria. And we, on sone of these

contracts, we passed the criteria before the

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 120

application was filed. R ght?
MR WALTZER

Yeah.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

And, therefore, the criteria don't apply?
MR. WALTZER

Ri ght .

CHAI RVAN JONES:

But on two of those applications, four
out of the six, four, they said the
applications were filed before the criteria
wer e passed; but on two of them they say, no,
the criteria -- the applications were filed
after the criteria was passed and we do apply
the criteria. Now, if that's the case -- and
as | read the ordinance, and this is what is
particularly strong to ne. As | read the
ordi nance -- and, again, | have -- |, like
you, probably are doing this on a vol unteer
basis, but | sonetines get to wear ny |awer's
cap as well. But as | read the Shreveport
City Council ordinance, this is what it says.
And I'mgoing to quote from Section 3 of the
ordinance: If the request fails to satisfy

all of the above criteria, the Cty Council
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resolution shall disfavor and reject the
applicati on.

It had no -- it had no option but to deny
the criteria if the ordi nance was passed after
the application; no option at all. It has to.

It has to followits own ordinance. [t can't
ignore it. So sticking in the dictum after
the fact that says, oh, by the way, we al so
need the noney, | don't think erases the fact
that the criteria, which is different fromthe
| TEP rul es was the basis for the deci sion.

And, oh, by the way, when you go back and
read the Commttee, if you read the Commttee,
actually the subcommttee of the City Council
t hat judged everything, you know where they
spend the bulk of their tine, not on the fact
that they don't -- the Gty don't have noney;
they spend the bulk of their time judging the
criteria and judging, do they neet our
criteria; yes, no; yes, no. And then in their
conclusions, they don't neet the criteria.
Period. That's the subcommttee of the Gty
Council. So when the subcommittee goes to the
Gty Council, they're saying, Gty Council,

they don't neet the criteria.
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So to conme in and say that the basis for
the City's decision was that we need the
nmoney, | think, is disingenuous; not perhaps
intentionally, but because they have an
ordinance with criteria that they applied and
they applied stringently, and they said, you
don't need it. | don't think they could have
done anythi ng other than di sapprove.

MR WALTZER

You have to -- you have to give your
| ocal partner sone ownership of its own
decisions. You can't change the decision for
them They stated as an independent --

CHAI RVAN JONES:
| f they --
MR WALTZER

Wait. Pl ease.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

No, this is ny room This is ny room
This is not your room M. Waltzer. |'l]l
all ow you to respond, but |I'mgoing to take
your contentions as they conme up. W do have
the right to ignore them Under the
constitution of the State of Louisiana, we do,

this Board and the Governor gets to decide
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what's in the best interest of the State of
Loui siana. And, again, this is just Jones
talking, this isn't the rest of the Board, but
i n nmy hunbl e opi nion, when we have a state
programthat has state criteria, clear
criteria, and the municipality wants to i npose
a nore stringent criteria than what this Board
has approved they are basically saying,
listen, we want -- that state programthat you
have over there, we want to do it our way, and
they're basically going to supplant the
State's authority with their own. And.

This is -- and this is what happens,
M. Waltzer, is that if the Gty of New
Ol eans and the School Board of New Ol eans
gets its way, the contract never even makes it
to the Governor's office. |t doesn't even get
there. He can't decide what's in the best
interest of the State because they basically
usurped his power and this Board's power by
I mposing rules that are nore stringent than
this Board inposed. Now, |I'mgoing to tell
you, if that's in the best interest of the
State of Louisiana, | need to quit this Board

and | need to go do sonething else with ny
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volunteer tine because -- yeah, | know that's
what you wish I'd do, but I'mnot doing it
t oday.
MR WALTZER

That's not what | wi sh you woul d do.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

| " m pi cking at you now. But that's the
problem And, you know, when this Board
passed the resolution to allow the appeal, if
that didn't tell New Oleans that there was a
problemw th their process, they weren't
| i stening, because the resolution was passed
by this Board and expressed, expressed
response to the ordinance that East Baton
Rouge and the City of New Ol eans was passing
and the School Board were passing. So to say
that sonehow this Board and the State of
Loui si ana and LED have not conmuni cated to New
Oleans, they're not -- | know they call it
the free state of New Ol eans, but they know
what's going on up here in Baton Rouge as
wel | .  They know t hat.

So they knew that they were -- they're
coloring -- and, today, they know they're

coloring outside the lines, but they're still
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choosing to do so. And that's their
prerogative, but they do not get to usurp the
prerogative of this Board and the Governor to
make a decision to what's in the best interest
of the State of Louisiana as far as these | TEP
contracts are concerned. |'mgoing to give
you one | ast coment, and then we're going to
nove on.
MR WALTZER

So | don't believe that they have
usurped. | believe that this Board has
constitutional discretion |like the Public
Service Conm ssion, |ike other bodies, it
exerci sed that discretion and created a | ocal
option, | guess |I'Il call it, right, and it
directed the guidelines. And that's -- and
New Ol eans and every one of the | ocal
governnmental entities have told you that the
basis, that they have an independent basis
that regardl ess of the guidelines, they can't
afford it, right. So if they can't afford it,
It woul d be an adequate reason under this
Board's judgnent, right. Then there's no
causation. There's no -- then I think it

woul d be inproper to grant these.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Let nme tell you what woul d be
I nappropriate. The State of Louisiana goes
after a conpany and they conpete with other
every other state in the country that wanted
that conpany to cone to them and they bend
over backwards to nmake sure that conpany cones
here and that conpany cones and they perform
they performwell. They pay their taxes.
They enpl oy people. They becone one of the
top five taxpayers in the City and the State
of Loui siana does that, and then we refuse the
programthat is available to that conpany and
we send that nessage to every other conpany
that we mght try to recruit to this state and
say, listen, we have this program but, oh, by
the way, we allow our nunicipalities to really
run it. That would be a problem That woul d
be a real problem

| know that New Orleans is having
difficulty with their taxes as is every other
governnental entity in this State. If that
beconmes the basis on which we nake deci sions,
we never, we never conpete for conpanies to

come here. | know that sonme people believe
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that we ought to get rid of incentive
prograns, |et conpanies live or die. That may
be what you want to do, but then you better
| earn to be a farnmer because there won't be
many ot her jobs available to you. The fact is
this State has nade the determ nation
sonewhere along the line that we are going to
be a manufacturing state and that it's so
I nportant, we're going to give manufacturers
t he nost valuable incentive this State has to
offer. W made that decision as a matter of
policy that's enshrined in our constitution.
And if we sonehow then say that
muni ci palities, you get to decide by your own
set of rules and your own set of guidelines
whet her you like this conpany, like going to
nmy Lafayette exanple, saying we just don't
want you unless you're a fossil fuel conpany.
If we're going to allow nunicipalities
that sort of discretion, then we mght as well
turn the whole programinto a |ocal program
and just do away with LED, do away with the
Board of Commerce and I ndustry. And we'll
just allow local nmunicipalities to do their

own econom ¢ devel opnent and | et them conpete
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wi th Texas and M ssissippi and Al abama on
their own.
MR WALTZER
So --
CHAI RVAN JONES:
| think that's a bad idea.
MR WALTZER

So financial reasons are not a good
reason?

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Financial is a good decision if you don't
have criteria. |f you have adopted criteria
that are different fromthis Board's criteria,
no, the financial reason is no | onger the
reason.

MR WALTZER

There's --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

M. Waltzer, the ordi nance says you shall
deny the request if you don't neet the
criteria. They didn't have a choice. It
wasn't an option.

MR WALTZER
They were going to do it anyway as an

I ndependent basis --
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

That's --
MR WALTZER

|'"'m-- you know, you're not going to
convi nce ne --
CHAI RMAN JONES:

The nessage that | think I want to go out
Is that nmunicipalities in Louisiana or School
Boards or Sheriffs or Parish bodies, if you
want to devel op your own set of criteria --
listen, we had a situation here not too | ong
ago where one of our Parishes wanted to
negotiate their own pilot wth one of the
conpanies. And we said, no, you can't do
that. I1t's 80/20. You're not going to be
able to negotiate your own pilot under the
| TEP program You either deny the application
or you take 80/20. W've been 100 percent
consistent wth this.

And the nessage that we need to send to
the I ocal governing entities of every -- and,
listen, |1've been a | ocal governing advocate
all of ny adult career. | was a city attorney
for eight years. | know what | ocal governnent

needs as well as you do, but this programis
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not a | ocal governnent program
MR WALTZER

| don't know how you can tell a | ocal
governnent, you shall nake efforts to devel op
reasonabl e gui delines, and then cone -- and
then conme and say, and the only reasonabl e
gui delines are the ones that we already have
in place. That nakes no sense.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

You could have all sorts of things that
-- the Q requirenent, we have a job
requi renment, and we have job requirenent in
| TEP that is defined and New Ol eans said, no,
no, no, we don't want that job requirenent; we
want the job requirenent that's on steroids.
W already have a program It's called
Quality Jobs. They wanted to incorporate the
Quality Jobs programinto ITEP. If you think
that's reasonabl e, that's unworkabl e, unless
all you want -- all you want is -- | nean
manuf acturing jobs for this programis very
clearly defined and New Ol eans went way
beyond. In the application process,
M. Leonard, | happen to agree with him

M. Leonard's position on the application
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process, that's not workable. It -- it --
| ocal governnent has its role in this process.

The Governor and this Board has seen fit
to do that. That's fine. But when they start
totry to say, but we're going to be a little
bit smarter than LED about this and we're
going to make this programa little tighter,
we're going to make it a bit tougher. That's
where they color outside of the lines. That's
the problem And that's the problemwth
these criteria in this situation, but that's
just Jones. Al right.

Al right. M. Waltzer, | think you and
| are done. How about Ms. Hansen or --

Ms. Hansen, I'mgoing to ask you to limt your
comrents to those points not already nade by
M. Waltzer, so we don't..

MS. HANSEN:

Understood. Thank you. M nane is Erin
Hansen. [|'ma resident of Ol eans Parish, and
we're representing Together Louisiana. Thank
you for the opportunity to speak and
apol ogi zes for the late delivery of the
packet .

| want to just draw your attention to a
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few itens that have not yet been lifted up
fromthe packet, specifically on Page 11. In
answer to your question, M. Holley, about the
total tax benefit associated with the
Cooper ati ve Endeavor Agreenent in 2010, the
tax benefit was for $17.8 mllion and that
covered five Industrial Tax Exenption program
applications that M. Waltzer delineated. In
fact, between 2010 and 2016, this Board
approved 21 applications and that covered
$22.3 mllion worth of Industrial Tax
Exenptions for Fol ger Coffee Conpany. So just
to underscore Secretary Pierson's point, the
State fulfilled and, in fact, exceeded its
obligations to the conpany according to the
2010 Cooperative Endeavor Agreenent.

And, finally, just want to speak to the
resol utions passed by this Board in 2020, the
February 2020 resolution that states that LED
on behalf of the Board will continue to work
with local interests to establish guidelines
consistent with the process and qualifications
for the exenption established by this Board.
And to lift up that it seens that the argunent

Is being nade that this resolution on its own
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was sufficient to notify Ol eans Parish
governi ng bodies that their resolution was in
conflict with the guidelines established by
the Board to approve or deny exenptions. And
my belief is that it's not a sufficient
notification to Oleans Parish that the rules
are out of line or that they should be
adjusted. To ny know edge, Ol eans Parish
governing authorities have not had the
opportunity -- have not received notice from
the State that their guidelines are out of
line or had the opportunity --

CHAI RVAN JONES:

And have you ever asked themt hat

guesti on?
V5. HANSEN:
| have not.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. So you don't know whet her they
received any information fromLED or not about
their ordi nances?

M5. HANSEN:

W have been in close conmmunication with
the I ocal governing authorities and --
CHAI RMAN JONES:
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But did you ask the question?
MS. HANSEN:

| did not.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

D d anybody you know ask the question?
MB. HANSEN:

| don't know the answer to that.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

kay. Ms. Hansen, the problemthat |
have you're making allegations that it didn't
happen when you didn't even ask to see whet her
It happened.
MS. HANSEN:

He did submt a public record request
related to all the communi cation around
Fol gers from LED and there was nothing in the
record about that communicati on.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Wel |, you recognize that there's
t el ephone calls, that there's public -- or
private neetings, there's all cups of coffee,
there's all sorts of ways to comuni cate that
are not subject to a public records speci al
request.

M5. HANSEN:
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May | ask Secretary Pierson if --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

No, you may not. You may not. We'll
have information comng to you, but we do not
ask questions of the Board. Qur job is to --
your entitled to nake comrents and to |isten,
but you're not entitled to ask questi ons.

This is the issue that is inportant here,
is that the Cty of New Ol eans was tasked
wi th, again, the word reasonable is inportant,
an inportant one, and |I'mnot going to go back
through that wth you, but the reality is that
LED did try to communicate with New Ol eans,
and New Ol eans chose to ignore those
communi cations. And |'Il have sonebody tell
you all about that in a few m nutes, but --
no, I'll just leave it at that for now Ckay.
Conti nue your points.

MB. HANSEN:

Just a last point that I would make is
that -- is that an appeal under the rules --
under the resolution that was passed in 2020
by this Board all owed the conpany the
opportunity to appeal a |ocal decision and

that doesn't constitute the right to an
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approval of an exenption request. So
notw t hst andi ng any conflict between the | ocal
rules and the rules of this Board, Folger is
not entitled by fact of that conflict alone to
an approval of its request. [It's just
entitled to the appeal. And so what we're
considering today is whether that appeal,
gi ven what we've | earned about the investnents
and whether they do or don't fall into the
Cooper ati ve Endeavor Agreenent and beyond are
| egitimate.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

| f you' re saying that Folger has a right
to appeal, they don't have a right to win the
appeal, | agree with that if that's what your
statenent. We still get to determ ne the
nmerits of the appeal.
MS. HANSEN:

That's right.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Al right. | agree with that a hundred
percent. GCkay. Anything else?
MS. HANSEN:

( Shakes head.)
CHAl RMAN JONES:
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| have a card from M. Mary Anne --
MS. MASHAFT:

Mashaft.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Yes. Thank you. |'mnot reading the
witing very well. Yes? Just pull the mc a
little bit closer to you.

MS. MASHAFT:

Sur e.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you.
MS. MASHAFT:

My nane is Mary Anne Mashaft. | ama
resident of Orleans Parish. | ama nenber of

Toget her New Ol eans, Toget her Loui siana, but

| am here as a taxpayer and the nother of two
sons who are probably not going to be com ng
back because the jobs that they are well
qualified for don't exist here. And one of
the reasons | believe that they don't exist
here is that you all give these tax exenptions
t hat inpoverish our public schools, our
streets, our health clinics, and our Sheriff
and Police Departnents. W are the |ast or

the bottomthree in public health, public
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education, and quality of life. And studies
have shown that is what brings quality
I ndustries, and no offense to Folgers in that,
but I'mjust livid.

| amlivid at you all. Y all are talking
about, what, the authority of the stabilism
that to enhance the quality of life of its
citizens, and not its corporate citizens only,
but it's people. How can y'all | ook at
your sel ves in the norning?
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. You have any nore? Anything
el se substantive to say other than --
MB. MASHAFT:

| think that was substantive. And |
think you all have | ost sight of that.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

O her than the fact that you' re livid.
It was substantive. | don't want to hear how
livid you are. | don't want to here whether |
shoul d be able to |l ook at nyself in the mrror
or not. Up to that point, you did fine. |If
you want to continue with your substantive
coments, you may do so.

V5. MASHAFT:
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Thank you. | shall. The Legislative

Body has decried the possibility of increasing

teacher pay. |If our corporate citizens paid
their taxes, the noney would be available to
enhance our education that will create the
wor kf orce of the present and the future;
right?
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Actually, no, I'mnot going to let that
go.
MS. MASHAFT:

Ckay.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Have you ever been to Morehouse Parish?
Do you know where Morehouse Parish is?
MS. MASHAFT:

No, but | --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. It's in the northeast part of the

St at e.
MS. MASHAFT:

| have been to the northeast part of the
State.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. You have not been to Morehouse
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Pari sh because not many peopl e have been to
Mor ehouse Pari sh.
MS. MASHAFT:
| s Monroe --
CHAI RVAN JONES:
No, it's not Monroe.

MS. MASHAFT:
Ch, okay.
CHAl RMAN JONES:
That's Quachita Parish. This is -- if

you don't have corporations to pay their
taxes, you don't have good schools. You know,
we had a project before us. And when we were
doi ng, you know, the work that you find so
di sdai nful, when we had a project before us in
Mor ehouse Parish, that was a solar farm--
MS. MASHAFT:

Uh- huh.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

A solar farmcreates one job. And we're
supposed to figure out, okay, are we going to
grant that or not. And it was real
interesting to ne because there was, you know,
there's a problemhere. You know, we want

renewabl es, but yet it only creates one job.
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| s solar really manufacturing electricity, all
t hat debate. But you know what Morehouse
Parish was really interesting in?
MS. MASHAFT:

No.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

The very fact that agricultural |and that
was fornerly fallowed agricultural |and by
bei ng converted froman agricultural tax basis
to an industrial tax basis increased their tax
revenues by al nost 40 percent. And they
wanted this program They wanted that thing
to be approved because they are such a poor
Parish they don't have any corporations to pay
t axes, because they haven't been able to
attract any corporations to Mirehouse. So
they wanted a solar farmjust so it would
I ncrease the tax base.

So when you decry corporations not paying
their taxes, you've got to first have
corporations in those parishes in order to pay
taxes. And believe it or not, corporations
get to choose where they're going to | ocate.
They get to choose whether it's going to be

Loui si ana, Texas, M ssissippi, Cklahoma, or
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anywhere el se they want to go. And as a
result, this Departnent works its tail off
trying to recruit those businesses. But in
order to get them here, they have to nake this
pl ace nore attractive than other places. Yes,
they like quality of life. Do they want to go
where there's crine? No, they really don't.

So you need to clean up your crine in New
Ol eans too, by the way, so let's tal k about
that if you want to. But to cone in here and
say this programis sonmehow doi ng sonething to
keep New Ol eans fromreaching its goals, this
programis what putting corporations in
Ol eans Parish so that you may reach your
goals. Instead of fighting corporations, you
need to be working to attract corporations.
MS. MASHAFT:

"' mnot fighting corporations. | just
want them - -
CHAI RVAN JONES:

To pay their taxes. | get that.
MB. MASHAFT:

Yes.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

But we have prograns that say, if you'll
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conme to Louisiana, you don't have to pay them
all the tine. You have to pay themfor a
period. You get an abatenent while you're
getting the conpany going. And then when you
get this equipnent, you don't have to pay it.
MS. MASHAFT:

Ckay.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

But Fol gers has becone, has noved from
bei ng out of the top ten and becone one of the
top four taxpayers in all of New Ol eans. And
you cone here and you want to criticize this
program or Fol gers, which has done exactly
what you have asked themto do. They've
created nore jobs than they've prom sed.
They' ve created hi gher payroll than they
prom sed. Your children don't have to | eave
Loui si ana; they can go to work for Fol gers.

What ? You don't want themto work for
Fol gers?

MS. MASHAFT:

My son works for General Mdtors in
Detroit.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ah.

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 144

MB. MASHAFT:

Doi ng these -- enbeddi ng conputer systens
I n cars.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

So he could have went to work for General
Mot ors in Shreveport when General Mdtors was
there until it was shut down because, well,
2008 el ections, but nevertheless. M'am |
don't want to argue with you, but I am not
going to allow people to sit at that table and
make al |l egations against this programand this
Board of volunteers who are working their tail
off totry to bring conpanies to this State
and decry us for doing what we believe is in
the best interest of the State of Louisiana.
MS. MASHAFT:

And isn't it ny right to just conme here
and say | disagree?

CHAI RMAN JONES:

You can, but you're not going to say the
things you're saying to this Board. You're
not going to say that we should not be able to
| ook ourselves in the mrror.

MS. MASHAFT:
Al right. | apol ogize.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you.
MS. MASHAFT:

| apol ogi ze for that. | was just -- | was
very upset on what you were saying.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ckay. Do you have anything el se to add?
MS. MASHAFT:

| "' mjust asking you as a taxpayer nyself

to reconsi der, because as a taxpayer, | just
feel like I'"'mleft out of this equation. |
do. | don't get a tax exenption abatenent for

a percent of ny taxes.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Actual ly, you get a honestead exenption
if you own a hone, $75, 000.
MS. MASHAFT:
Yeah.
CHAI RMAN JONES:
That's a pretty big deal in the State of

Loui si ana.
MS. MASHAFT:
Yeah. Kkay.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
Pretty big deal.
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M5, MASHAFT:

Al right. | just -- | just dis --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you. | appreciate you bei ng here.
MR, NASSAR

M. Jones?
CHAl RMAN JONES:

Al right. M. Bagert? I|'msorry. M.
Nassar ?
MR, NASSAR

| knew when | wal ked in this norning,
this was going to be this type of neeting,

whi ch is good that everybody has a right to

say what they have to say. | agree with what
you said. | can look nyself in the mrror
every day. | mght not like what | see with

age, but | can look nyself in the mrror.

In St. Janes Parish where |'mfrom
| ndustry pays between 70 and 80 percent of ad
val oremtaxes. One of our l|ocal industries
shut down a couple of years ago, and we felt
it. We felt it bad. 1've been on the School
Board for 28 years. | just retired at the end
of Decenber 2022. W had to lay off 30 people

when that one conpany shut down. So let's
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stop and think about not only the ad val orem
taxes that they do pay, of course, through the
programthat the State offers, but what about
the sal es and use tax?

Sal es and use tax on a $1 billion
construction or a $1 billion facility, let's
just a say a local entity collects two and a
hal f percent of the sales and use tax on that
$1 billion facility how nmuch noney that is. |
just want everybody to stop and think about
it. Is this controversial? O course it is.
O course it is.

Has Fol gers done as nmuch and nore than
what they said they woul d? Yes, they did. Do
| believe in |ocal autonony? As our Parish
President said earlier, | believe in |ocal
autonony. | really do, but we have to sit
down and | ook at everythi ng when we nmake a
deci si on.

Now if the criteria was used to deny the
application, to deny the exenption, that's a
different story than just denying it straight
out because they wanted the 80/20 after the
2018 Executive Order. So |I'mnot going to sit

here and argue back and forth which should or
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shoul dn't happen, but | just want everybody to

realize the anount of noney that is paid when
an industry locates in a Parish, in a

community the sales and use tax, not only on

what's the material that's being used to build

it, but the recurring sales and use tax after
this conpany goes into operation. That's all
| have. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Thank you, M. Nassar. W have a card
fromM. Bagert, M. Broderick Bagert. State
your nane and your position, please.

MR, BAGERT:

Still good norning for a few nore

mnutes. M nane is Broderick Bagert with

Toget her New Ol eans and Toget her Loui si ana.

And we've been at this for a while. And | may

say early on when you don't always get what
you want, you can sonetines have a too narrow
and prejudicial view of the people with whom
you' re working who don't get everything they
want .

Wel |, when the original fornms were nade,
the fact that they didn't reach back and

applied to all of the existing contracts, boy,
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what a m ssed opportunity from our

perspective; the fact that they didn't apply
to the renewal s, we thought that was the w ong
decision, didn't like it. M ght have even
fallen into the tendency or tenptation to say,
you know, those so and sos just wanted to give
away the farm may have even on one instance
that | can think of fromny case personally
attributed that to the nmenbers of the staff,
not just the Board. And then, you know, you
can through neetings and see how people are in
certain circunstances, different

ci rcumnst ances.

And ny takeaway fromall that is what
peopl e are working hard for this Departnent,
and they are trying to be fair, and they are
trying to be fair when they're bal anci ng
Interests, the interest of local entities, the
I nterest of conpanies, the interest of
taxpayers, and then in particular when it
cones to the staff, but all of you as well,
peopl e are doing their best.

The way that the |local officials of the
Cty of New Ol eans have been described in

this neeting is not accurate or fair. And |
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say that because | was there for nost of the
nmeetings. They got a set of rules fromyou
that said, develop guidelines. It said,
within 60 days of the pronul gation of these
rules, the local governnent entities for each
Pari sh shall make best efforts to devel op
reasonabl e guidelines. And there was an
extensive process of deliberation about that

i n which nmenbers of the School Board, nenbers
of the Adm nistration of the Gty of New

Ol eans, nenbers of the Gty Council were

bal ancing. W do not want to | ose a single
conpany. W do not want to | ose a single job.
We do not want to disincentivize anything. W
certainly don't want to run afoul of the Board
of Comrerce and Industry, which has the
constitutional authority that it has in a
specific way sort of extended to include our

I nput .

And all of those |ocal officials with
citizens taking part went through that process
and did their very best. And in subsequent to
that, a resolution was passed that said, if
you conflict, if your standards conflict with

the I ocal guidelines, then there's this right
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for an appeal to be heard. You said that that
was in direct response to the New Ol eans
gui del i nes as though that was entirely clear.

| can tell you that was not clear at least to
us. And we did ask, right. | nean, did they
say you -- now | take for granted that there's
going to be people who say you i nformthem
that their guidelines were out of step. |
don't deny that.

When that resolution was passed, which
felt like, oh, that woul d have been good to
know bef or ehand, what does conflict nmean?

Does conflict nean different fron? If so, why
direct themto establish guidelines if they
are not neant to be different fron? There's
no indication that being nore stringent was a
probl emuntil subsequently, right.

So then we go back and say, okay, now the
Board of Commerce and I ndustry has done this,
what do you want to do? And I think they're
in a fix. They' ve had hundreds of people
t hrough dozens of neetings deliberate about
what our standards ought to be and cane out
where they cane out. And their decision was,

| ook, we've gone through this whol e process.
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At the tinme anyway, they had not got any clear
directive that these were conflicting with the
State Board of Comrerce and Industry or that
they had thereby self-revoked their ability to
have that |ocal discretion. If that
comruni cati on was sent, then |'mgoing to go
get real mad at our local officials for not
communi cating that to us, right. | nean if
they were inforned that their |local authority
to say yeah or nay has been revoked because of
their standards, then you're right and they
certainly should have changed their actions.
That said, the idea that they were trying
to thunb their nose at you or do their own
thing, that's a story we've got about New
Oleans. Sonetinmes we call it a nene, it's
i ke, yeah, we know that about New Ol eans,
just do -- that was not the spirit or intent
of any of the local officials or citizens who
took part in the process to try to figure out
what shoul d our guidelines out to be. W were
trying to do what you directed us to do.
There are communi cations in these reans of
docunents that we got of the Gty of New

Ol eans conmuni cating with your staff, and
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sayi ng, hey, these Fol gers exenptions passed;
not in a tricky way, but saying we have
determ ned that four of these that cane in
bef ore our guidelines were established do not
apply to our local guidelines. Those wll be
devel oped or deci ded on i ndependent of all
that. And then that is reflected in their
resolutions. They nmade that determ nation
because it seened right.

| think it was also -- and then they
i ncl uded | anguage on the other two to say,
| ook, with this resolution, we don't know
where things are, let us be clear that even
when one of the ones where the guidelines did
apply that it was not those that didn't. It
was that we needed that noney. | understand
the place that puts you in, right, but this
was attenpting to balance, in their case, the
participation and involvenent of literally
hundreds of citizens and dozens and dozens of
hours of |local officials to arrive at
sonet hi ng and then a subsequent decision to
kind of put that into question their attenpt
to balance that. |f Folgers had acted on

their exenption request in a tinely way and
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not had those applications del ayed,
intentionally delayed, then they woul d not
have been the local -- they would have been
approved before the | ocal guidelines and
before any right to appeal and we woul dn't be
her e.

| nstead, they asked for del ays, received
del ays, got consideration after | ocal
gui delines had cone into effect and a Gty
that says we want to be clear even in an
internal email to your staff, in a public
deci si on nmaki ng process, those | ocal
gui delines were not going to be the reason
they were decided. That, | would just say the
spirit wth which you have characteri zed,
M. Jones, the actions and intent of our |ocal
officials in our local comunity has not been
accurate, has not been fair. And the spirit
wi th which you have interrogated sone of the
peopl e that have spoke before you may be
fairly in sone case because of what was said,
right, but even before that does not seemlike
It capturers the spirit of what we're trying
do here. W're trying to do what we

under st and, and sonetines it's noving around,
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to be the intent of this Board. And this
Board said devel op | ocal guidelines, we did.
Then it said, if there's a problem then
there's a right to appeal. And then we said,
fine, these -- there was -- the guidelines did
not apply. It was before that. And yet, the
characterization has been, |ook, there goes
New Ol eans agai n questioning our authority,
doing its own thing, trying to dance to the
beat of its own drum

| don't know if that's the case for the
Cty at Large. |It's not the case through this
process. |It's not been their intent. It's
not been our intent. W' ve been trying to do
in the spirit of public citizenship what
you' ve asked us to do. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

M . Bagert, before you go, |'mnot going
to argue with you. | don't believe anybody
was trying to be nefarious. | don't believe
that at all. If I've inplied that, that's not
my intent. | apologize for it if that's the
perception that | convey because that was not
my intent. Wat |I'mtrying to convey is that

this programis not a municipal program |It's
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not a | ocal governnent program and that the
rules in this situation nmade it nore than what
this -- | think that's ny problemis that they
went too far.

If they -- for exanple, | know that when
we were developing the rules and we're talking
about the -- | renenber | was sitting right
over there in one of our neetings, and | was
sayi ng that what needs to happen at the | ocal
level is this, and | used St. Janes Parish as
an exanpl e because that pre Executive O der
when you went to the St. Janes Parish, if you
were an industry trying do a project, you went
to St. Janes Parish, the Parish Council
woul dn't nmeet with you wi thout the School
Board, the Sheriff, the Tax Assessor being
there. They set up their own process how t hey
were going to eval uate projects.

And so because they have had a bad
experience years ago, they nade sure that
their local entities work in concert with
one -- so that it was all -- and that was the
concept is that you set up | ocal guidelines so
t hat when a conpany cones to you, that all of

us -- frankly, what, again, just Jones when |
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was sitting right over there and voted for
this that the |Ianguage and the rule, what |
was hoping for was a streanline process so
t hat conpani es woul dn't have to go to 14, 000
neetings trying to get sonething approved;
that there would be a very concise way of
dealing with things.
MR. BACERT:

Ri ght. You know where you stand.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

Exactly.
MR. BACERT:

We don't have to keep fighting this

stuff. W don't have to spend all of our tine

-- it's not great either on this side. That
is exactly the intent; clarity,
predictability.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Right. So all I'"'msaying is, is that in
my world at | east, they reached too far by

changi ng the requirenents of the prograns.

That's all I'mtrying to comrunicate.
MR. BACERT:
And | --

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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And if |'ve indicated anything to the
contrary, | apol ogi ze.
MR, BACERT:

So and | understand that perspective.
This is a Folgers pen, | just realized.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

You're welconmed to wite with it.
MR. BACERT:

You know, |ike one of our best volunteers
in a church in New Ol eans East is a Fol gers
enpl oyee. Qur nenber institutions are filled
wi th Fol gers enpl oyees. The idea that we want
or can even sustain an antagonistic
relationship with our business conmunity is
another inpression that | would say is
entirely false. It is nmuch easier to sustain
heal t hy, good, positive relationships --

CHAI RVAN JONES:
| ndeed.
MR. BACERT:

-- when things are clear and they stop
shifting around, right. Wen a conpany nakes
an i nvestnent the next year, it goes on the
tax rolls, unless they have an exenption. And

t hen suddenly, you have one that doesn't have
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an exenption; they have an application for an
exenption, and it goes three years. Still,
and you're like, what's going on, because
that's one of the biggest ones there. |[|f they
don't have an exenption, there's nothing in
the law that says the intent to apply for an
exenption grants you a de facto exenption that
you can act on informally. That starts to
fray because what do you say? |If you say,

that's wong, that's not according to the | aw,

they should -- then you're against the
conpany. | guess so, right. Are we? No,
we're not.

The breakdown of the enforcenent of the
| aws as they exist, when you start to have one
set of rules for one group and anot her set of
rules for sonebody else, it creates the
I npression of contestation and conflict when
it doesn't exist. And I'll just say this,
|' ve never heard you talk about a single
conpany the way you tal ked about | ocal
officials today. |'ve never heard you talk to
a single conpany.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

You weren't here --
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MR, BAGERT:

Even Erin -- | was here. | was here the
whol e nor ni ng.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

No, no, no. You weren't here about six
nont hs ago. There was sonebody sitting right
in that chair that heard pretty strong
nessage.

MR BAGERT:

Even Erin. Typically, there's an attenpt
to be considerate and fair. And what | would
say, if the process and net hodol ogy that this
Board has used, which is to say we're not
going to change the rules and then hold one of
the bodies that's seeking a decision
accountable for rules that were not in place
at the tinme the decisions were nmade, if you
follow that sane procedure, then y'all reach
t he concl usion that those exenptions,
especially the ones that were before decision
rules were applied and the rul e nmaki ng process
at the |local |evel at your discretion, at your
I nstruction, those should not prejudice |ocal
entities. |If you treated local entities and

| ocal communities the way you treat conpani es,
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we don't think you wll grant these appeals.

W think you will say what we understand
you to say and the Governor to say, at the end
of the day, constitutionally, this is your
authority. Financially, this is local noney.
And | ocal decision makers know better. And if
they don't, they have the right to nake their
own judgnents about their |ocal tax base.
That's what we understand to be the intent,
the spirit, the goal, the refornms. It will be
a departure fromthat practice and that goals,
i f you grant this appeal, and we hope you
don't.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you for your opinion. That's all
the cards | have.

Ms. Porter, would you conme up, please?
MS. PORTER:

Yes. Did you see ne noving around in the
chair? |I'mtrying to get up here.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

State your nane and position with the
Depart nent, please.
MS. PORTER:

Robi n Porter, Executive Counsel wth LED.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

| understand there's been nuch debate as
to whether there was di scussions between LED
and the nmunicipalities and the School Board
concerning the rules that they, the criteria
that they devel oped. Wuld you educate us on
that a little bit?

MS. PORTER:

Yes. As of the end of 2019, staff net
wi t h Counci | woman Moreno or Counci | man Moreno,
and at that tine, that visit was to talk to
and convince her -- her, to change the | ocal
rule. We had been nmade aware that the rules
or the ordinances that were approved, they
were in conflict. So that's the first
I nst ance.

The second probably nore towards early
2020, staff met with the City of New Ol eans
econom ¢ staff, that's a Tracey Jackson, Ellen
Lee, and Jeffrey Schwartz al so then to explain
and tal k about the fact that the | ocal
gui delines, they were in conflict with the
| TEP rules. Even to such an extent where LED
was t hi nki ng about, okay, so what kind of

wor kar ound possi bly we nay be able to do,
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maybe have sonething that can be applied to
notify conpanies if they're thinking about
going into Oleans Parish to send them
directly to where the rules are so they could
take a |l ook at that and have an under st andi ng
about what they nmay cone up against. So even
to that extent, they were trying to do sone
type of workaround.

And the third instance, | believe was,
yes, GNO, Inc. again, whereas pointing out
where the rules were in conflict. So at no
time was or did LED not nake the | ocals aware
at that tine that the rules that they had
I npl emrented and adopted were in conflict with
the local ITEP rules -- or the State | TEP
rul es.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
Any questions for Ms. Porter?
M5. COLA:
| do.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Yes, go ahead.
M5. COLA:
H, Yvette Cola. D d you get a response

fromthe locals when you inforned them each
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time of the conflict of the rules? Wat was
their response?
MS. PORTER

Their response was the rules are the
rules. They were not receptive to the change,
which is the reason why we were thinking about
doi ng a wor karound to nake the conpani es aware
to go to where the rules were to take a | ook
to see what they nay be com ng up agai nst and
the Parish. They were -- it wasn't -- they
weren't receptive to change.
M5. COLA:

Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any ot her comments or questions for
Ms. Porter?
MR, HOLLEY:

| have a question. State your position

one nore tinme for nme, please.

MS. PORTER:
Executi ve Counsel for LED.
MR. HOLLEY:

kay. Are you famliar with the
conti nui ng agreenent that LED had with Fol gers

10 years ago, 20107
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M5, PORTER:

The CEA? Yes.
MR, HOLLEY:

Yeah, the CEA
M5. PORTER

I"'mfamliar with it.
MR HOLLEY:

It seens |ike today that Fol gers has
taken the position that these |ast six
contracts is governed by that continuing
agreenent. \What is your opinion about that?
MS. PORTER:

| have a difference of opinion about
that. | think that the six contracts that
were in question today are outside the purview
or the scope of the 2010 CEA. | also think
that in Section 4.02B does not nean or
obligate LED to ensure approval of the
conpany's | TEP applications in perpetuity. So
that's my opinion on that.

MR, HOLLEY:

And these contracts were under the
Executive Order; they were nade when the
Executive Order was in effect?

M5. PORTER
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The six, yes.
MR, HOLLEY:

And, therefore, it's your opinion that
the 20 percent would be owed to the governing

authorities in Ol eans Parish?

MS. PORTER
Correct.

MR, HOLLEY:
Thank you.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
Thank you, M. Holl ey.
Anything else for Ms. Porter?
Thank you, Ms. Porter.

Al right. It's tinme to entertain a
motion. | -- | -- okay. M. Slone?
MR SLONE:

Yeah, I1'd like to entertain a notion that
we approve this. | knowit's been very

contentious and there's a | ot of conversation
going around. But if I go right back to what
this Board's authority is, | would utilize
that as the basis for a notion to approve.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

We have a notion fromM. Slone. A

second from M. Bishop to -- I"'mtrying to
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understand what the notionis. Is it to --
MR SLONE:
A notion to approve --
CHAI RVAN JONES:
To approve all six contracts?
MR SLONE:
-- all six contracts.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. Absolutely. W're going to have
pl enty of opportunity for coment and
questions, all right, so we're not going to
run to vote. All right. First, who wants to
-- whose up first? Mayor Toups?

MAYOR TOUPS:

"Il go. As a representative of |ocal
governnment, and I'mas close to the | ocal
governnent as you can get, the boots on the
road, | nean that's where we are, and a | ot of
my municipalities, ny, our nunicipalities
don't have a say in any of these matters, but
the Governor's Executive Order did give us the
opportunity to have a say on and it. And it's
nmy relationship with nmy parish governnent,
school board, and the Sheriff that | express

my opinion. |I'mvery ITEP friendly. |'mvery
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friendly of this conpany as well. But as a
representative of |ocal governnent, | have a
coupl e of questions that | need answer ed.

So these contracts, are they part of --
when they cane and cane and got approved, they
were sent to | ocal governnment because it fell
under the new rules that the | ocal governnents
had a voice in. Regardless of what their
criteriais, did they have a say in if these
contracts would, if they would accept them or
not is ny question?

MB. CHENG

Yes, they were approved in the Novenber
2020 neeting by this Board and then it was
sent to the locals for their consideration.
MAYOR TOUPS:

And it was under the rules --

MS. CHENG
Yeah, the 2018 rul es.
MAYOR TOUPS:

And was the |ocal governnent's approval
within a tinely manner?
MB. CHENG

Yes, they returned their notice back,

whi ch gave them 60 days to take acti on.
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MAYOR TOUPS:

Ckay. Thank you. That was ny questions
as a representative of |ocal governnent.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you, Mayor.

MR, HOLLEY:

It may not be the right tine to ask the
gquestion, but | wanted to ask it since the
executive | egal counsel has expressed her
opinion as to whether or not that issue is on
appeal today. | nean, obviously, they've
expressed their opinion that it's subject to
t he 2010 contract, and al t hough the
applications were nade after the Executive
Order. So ny question is, is it, Nunmber 1,
under the -- is it subject to the appeal or is
that a noot issue that it is subject to the
O der?

CHAI RMAN JONES:

All I can do is give you an opinion. The
way | read their appeal, | think they're much
i ke many | awyers, they present a case to the
judge and try to give himas nmany pegs as
possible to hang his hat onit, and | tend to

agree wiwth Ms. Porter. | think that the
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support that is required under the Cooperative
Endeavor Agreenent, |I'mnot sure it extends to
every contract noving forward, but | don't
think that's necessarily dispositive of the
overall issue. | think that was one of the
pegs that they put their hat on, but | just, |
don't agree that that support goes to saying
we have to rubber stanp everything that cones
across. This Board still has authority to up
or down everything that conmes to us according
to what we think is being in the best interest
of the State of the Louisiana.
MR, HOLLEY:

Thank you.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any ot her questions or comments?
Anything at all? Any coments?

Any comrents, any further comments from
the public? There is a -- yes, sir?
MR ZERVI GON

Thank you, Chairman Jones, for a second
chance to have a stab at it.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Yes.

MR, ZERVI GON:
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| am Chair of Legal and Legislative
Comm ttee on the Ol eans Parish School Board.
|'ve been there two years. |In that entirety,
we have been going through this process with
Fol gers, it has never been brought to ny
attention that there was ever an alert that
the criteria was not -- did not reconcile with
what you all have. | just heard that the Cty
heard; we never heard. As we nove forward --
and I know you all are about to vote on it and
do what you're going to do. But as we nove
forward, it will be really inportant for all
of us to determ ne what | ocal control neans.

When the Governor gives this Executive
Order like this, what do we or do we not have
a say in, it starts to feel like then it all
must be the sane as what this group would do
as you all have the ultimate authority. Then
Is the local Board then just a check on what
you all would do in case you all go awmy? And
then it starts getting confusing in terns of
what are the standards, what is the process,
what are we -- so we just would need to have
better communication, | believe, in terns of

how we nove forward if we're going to have
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this addendumto the ITEP that there's a | ocal
say. Because at this point, |'m becom ng
confused as to what exactly is the local role,

if it's not just to mrror what y'all are

doing. | see you saying that maybe they went
too far. | wish that had been communi cated to
us. | feel like a bit of we baked a cake,

then told we don't I|ike cake.

| would just |ike nmuch better
communi cation fromthe Board. | will be there
at | east another two years at the Ol eans
Pari sh School Board. There's hundreds of
school board nenbers in the State, and we all
try to do our best. Like you pointed out,
we're all volunteers trying to do our best in
governnment the right way. And I'd say in
Loui si ana, we have a really good track record
of doing governnment well contrary to our
reputation. And that is what we absolutely
seek to do. And this is just beginning to
kind of get confusing and frustrating in terns
of what's expected. | will ask for
clarification in noving forward.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Well, and | think your point is well
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taken. And | think that, | think one nessage
that can be inferred, assuming this notion
passes, one nessage that can be conferred is
that fromthe Board of Commerce |Industry's
perspective, you can -- any nunicipality, any
School Board, any |ocal governnment can have
gui del i nes, but they cannot be nore stringent
than what's under the ITEP rul es, you know.
That's -- that is the point. There are a |ot
of things that | ocal governnment can do to be
part of this process.

| nmean the exanple | gave earlier, just
provide a place for governnent to cone --
excuse ne, for a conpany to conme and say,
okay, tell ne what your expectations are
within the community, tell nme what -- you
know, what can we do to be better, to be part
of your -- because this is the power. This is
the power you have, and this is the thing that
| want to be sure that you understand, you
have the power to say, we don't want you.
W're not wlling to give up any tax revenue
to get you here. You have the power to say
no, which therefore gives you the power to

di scuss and to say, this is the corporate

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 174

citizen we want you to be. These are the kind
of things we want you to be engaged i n.

Now, you can't change the I TEP rul es, but
you can change the kind of behavior that they
may participate in while they're in your
community. So --

MR. ZERVI GON:

Yeah, well -- go ahead. |'msorry.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

So those are, | think, again, |I'mjust
one nenber, one vote, but those are things
that I think I ocal governnment can do. And |
think this is one of the things, frankly, good
things that's cone out of the Executive O der
process is that there is now nore
comruni cati on goi ng on between industry and
| ocal governnent than there has been in tines
past, and | think that's a good result. |
know that and |'ve heard several |ocal
governnent people, that's what they said to ne
Is we're having better communi cations than
we' ve ever had. |If nothing else, that's a
good thing. But | think the lynch penin this
particular situation is the criteria that was

greater than the | TEP rul es.
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MR, ZERVI GON:

And then | would | ook forward to better
comruni cation in ternms of what does greater
nmean, what does nore stringent nean, what does
maybe getting outside of our |ane nean. W
have, of course, across the State many
I ndustries that are there that are then
maki ng, say, additions, inprovenents. So then
It doesn't cone into question about whether or
not we want you there or not, but what about
t hese new applications we're tal ki ng about
bei ng there about now that you are there,
which is maybe a different question. And so,
again, | would | ook forward to greater
conversation, conmuni cation about how this is
going to work.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Absol utely. Again, we've only had two
| ocal governnents where we've had this issue.
MR ZERVI GON

Well, then let's, again, we need to have
that --

CHAI RVAN JONES:

That - -
MR ZERVI GON.
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Again then, but still that points out, |
woul d say still --

CHAI RVAN JONES:

| don't disagree. | don't disagree with
you at all. Thank you very much.
MR ZERVI GON:

Thank you.

CHAI RMAN JONES:
And | appreciate you bei ng here today.
Al right. Yes, ma' an?

M5. VAREN:

My nane is Linda Wen, and |'mcomng in
as a citizen involved in Together New Ol eans,
Together Louisiana. |'mtrying to understand
this conplex process as | don't have any
background in the law or Gty governnent. One
thing that struck ne was that the Gty Council
was notified that they went above and beyond
the guidelines, and I didn't hear, and maybe
it did happen, that the School Board and the
Sheriff's Ofice also got that conmunicati on.

The School Board bei ng nore maybe not
quite as politically connected, | wonder if
they m ght have known it if they would have

gone to the Gty Council and said, hey, y'all
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are screwing this up for us and we need to do
sonet hi ng about this. So if just the Cty
Council got that notice, that's concerning
when there's other bodies that are involved
i ke the School Board and the Sheriff's

of fice.

CHAl RMAN JONES:

And | think it's a fair question. But |
know that if you go to the City Council web
page and you go to the Mayor's O fice, and you
go to econom c devel opnent and you | ook under
| TEP process, there are a nunber of steps that
a conpany has to go through to under the
Mayor's own descri ption.

MS. WAREN:

Uh- huh.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

And it becones very clear as you read
those steps that the School Board and the City
Council and the Sheriff, all three are working
on that project together. So | don't -- |
can't tell you for sure whether that was
communi cated to the School Board or not.

M5. VAREN:

Yeah.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

But if they're working carefully and
closely on all the applications, it stands to
reason that at sone point, it m ght have been
a, gee, did you know kind of thing. So but |
don't know.

MS. WAREN:
Yeah.
CHAl RMAN JONES:
But it would be -- when | ooking at that

website and you see how the steps work, it's

clear that the three organi zations are working

t oget her, so.
MS. VAREN:
I n theory.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Well, yes.
MS. WAREN:
Yes.
CHAI RMAN JONES:
| don't know, but what the process is,
whet her it works out, | don't know.
MS. WAREN:
And, again, this wll show ny ignorance,

but if this entity in New Ol eans over st epped
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and they nmade gui delines that were nore
stringent and they were notified, is there not
an opportunity for this group here to say,
yes, those guidelines were too strict, but we
think that Fol gers needs to pay what our
guidelines are or is that no ability to do
that; you have to just grant their appeal or
t hey --
CHAl RMAN JONES:

That's a fair question.
M5. VAREN:

-- pay not hi ng.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

That's a fair question, but the
gui delines that New Ol eans adopted and the
School Board adopted went to Fol gers'
gualification to get the exenption. It was an
all or nothing kind of thing. It didn't say
you get nore of an exenption if you do this,
| ess of an exenption if you do that. So |
think that that was -- that's the problem
it's -- so that's where we are.
MS. WAREN:

Ckay. It's disappointing.
CHAl RMAN JONES:
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| understand. Anything el se?
MS. WAREN:

Thank you.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Thank you very nuch.
MS. WAREN:

Thank you for your tine.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Very qui ckly, M. Bagert.
MR. BAGERT:

Very qui ckly.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

Very quickly. W have been here a | ong
tine.
MR. BACERT:

|"ve not heard the Board speak to the
fact that the Gty expressly both in internal
comruni cations with the staff and formally in
the resolution established that its guidelines
were not used and did not apply to four of the
si x exenptions, which for which an advanced
noti ce had been submtted before the
devel opnent of those guidelines. It said it
had nothing to do with it. It said

internally, it said it informally, and it said
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it using the sane criteria that this Board
used in the initial rules and Executive O der
or the fact that the Sheriff, which has no
gui delines period. W've talked to Marlin
Gusman, we've talked to the new Sheriff, just
did not have guidelines, rejected them

They're all -- are they being treated as
t hough the guidelines did apply, when in those
cases, they clearly appear not to have
applied? So I haven't heard you speak to
that, and | think that that does deserve sone
consi derati on.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you. M. Slone nade the notion.
The notion was to approve the School Board,
the Gty Council, and the Sheriff, or was it
one or two or was it sone or all? Help
expl ain your notion.

MR SLONE:

My notion was to approve the Folger's
Cof f ee Conpany contracts that have been |isted
based upon all three criteria -- the three
approving authorities, and because they are in
-- they ban together to create what was here.

That's -- whether they abstained or not, it
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came out as local governnent. So that's why
my notion is to approve all six.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

M. Bishop, you nmade the second. Do you

concur ?
REPRESENTATI VE BI SHOP:
(Nods head.)

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. Yes, sir. That's a yes.

Any ot her questions or comments fromthe
public or comments fromthe public?

Real quick, M. \Waltzer?
MR WALTZER

Yes, | think it's inappropriate to --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Sorry. Get in front of the mc, I'm

sorry, for the court reporter.

MR WALTZER

No, I"mjust going to -- | think it would
be i nappropriate to -- | believe -- | believe
that -- | believe that the rule would require

that there be sone evidence that a decision
was based on the guidelines, and | believe
that those that are expressly not based on the

gui del i nes shoul d be excluded fromthe notion
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as it's currently drafted, because | think
there needs to be sone show ng of an abuse by
of discretion. And, you know, when the City
or the Sheriff is saying nothing at all,
except no, which as you said, has the right to
say no, sinply say no, it would be unfair to
attribute the om ssions of the New Ol eans
Gty Council, for instance, on that body. And
for the four applications that were expressly
done outside of the guidelines, it again,
woul d be unfair to apply what is, again,
turned out to a punishnent, you know, because
they are just saying no, that that's what they
did for those four.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay.
MR WALTZER

| would urge that those be carved out,
the Sheriff and the ones submtted in 2017
under the 2017 and 2018 | TEP nunbers.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Al right. M. Pierson?
SECRETARY Pl ERSON

In a few nonents, | suspect we'll be

maki ng an inportant vote on the issue before
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us and | just want to be clear when we do,
| ooki ng past the word Folgers at this nonent
and | ooking at a precedent that the Board is
going to chall enge the voice of the |ocal
comunity. Currently, we just ask for a yes
or no, and we use that as a standard agai nst
how we proceed. You have | ocal support or you
don't. In this case, we see very clearly that
the | ocal support is not there.

Anot her question that was raised were,
are these standards that have been put in
pl ace reasonabl e or unreasonabl e? They are
not the standards that we recommend. |In fact,
we were in the roomas advisory and said, this
iIs not the way you're going to build a | ot of
i ndustry in your future. Now, were they
unr easonabl e standards put in? Basically,
four elenments of that $18 an hour wage rel at ed
to the Quality Jobs program For a
manuf acturi ng operation, and these are only
applicable to manufacturi ng operations, that
woul d not appear to be an onerous wage. There
were new job requirenents that were waged by
the scale of the proposal. But in sone cases,

retenti on and noderni zation activities are
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goi ng to cause you to nmake a good deci sion and
nmove forward with a project that does not
create new jobs but holds the jobs you have in
place. So there is a jobs requirenent and
that's nore onerous than what we m ght
recommend.

They require that this be in an
Enterprise Zone or an Qpportunity Zone or a
sensel ess track wwth a | ower than the average
wage. And, finally, they don't want to
approve any project that's already started.
Now, you can submt an advance and begi n your
project, but you do so at risk that this Board
and the Governor will sign a tax exenption
contract for you later. Speaking to the
market, it's inportant to conpanies. So to
di squalify those conpani es that have already
broken ground is not one that we woul d
recomend. However, they woul d consider that,
| would think, to be the but for. Now, I'min
Oleans Parish and I want to start this
project and | want your approval to nove
forward with the tax exenption; but if you' ve
al ready started, that's off the table. Those

are the inposed restrictions that you' ve heard
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di scussed today as being too high of a bar.

From ny vantage point, it's a higher bar
than I would like, but Parish governnents and
| ocal governnents neke their own
determ nati ons and these have been carefully
consi dered by Ol eans Pari sh gover nnment
entities. They affect what M. Bagert pointed
out, which is howdo | tell a conpany, how do
| tell themthat they' ve got a good chance of
securing approval? Well, by having these
criteria and | neet these four key el enents,
I"'mlikely to get that approval.

W can't m cronmanage in these 64
Pari shes. W are guiding, advising, and
working with this Board to secure those
opportunities. But in this case, you surely
have to recognize that, while these are nore
onerous than you mght want in terns of
econom ¢ devel opnent policy, those are
policies that have been sel ected by those
Pari sh governnments. So | would just ask that
you consi der that and the precedent that's
bei ng set today and how we proceed in this
manner .

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Any ot her coments? Questions?
MR, HOLLEY:

Could I hear the notion again, please?
MR SLONE:

The notion is to approve the Folger's
Cof fee Conpany contracts, and | can list them
all, but the six nunbers that are |listed here,
| ast four of 0466, 0467, 0297, 0298, 03, and |
thi nk you corrected it, 91.

MS. CHENG
Yes, Sir.
MR SLONE:

And the | ast one bei ng 0392.
MR, HOLLEY:

| thought that those applications had
al ready previously been approved two years
ago.

MR, SLONE:

Yes. Essentially, what has happened is
the | ocal governnent has denied them They're
comng to us for an appeal, which basically we
basically overrule that denial and send the
contracts to the Governor for his signature.
MR. HOLLEY:

So maybe the notion should be sustaining
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t he appeal of Folgers inasnuch as it was the
ordi nances of the Ol eans Parish governing
authorities were too onerous and beyond the
scope of the rules and regulations of this
Boar d.
MR SLONE:

| hope sonebody got that down.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Wul d you accept that anendnent,
M. Slone?
MR SLONE:

Yes, |'ll accept that.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

M. Bishop, would you accept that
amendnment ?
REPRESENTATI VE BI SHOP:

(Nods head.)
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Yes, he would. Al right. So very good.

Contrary to the belief in the room |'m
goi ng to have to speak against the notion for
at least partially; nunber one, | think that
-- | don't think that the Sheriff's matter is
before the Board. | don't think it was part

of the original appeal. | think the fact is
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we don't know the basis for which the Sheriff
made his decision. | think | know, but I
don't know. There's no -- there's nothing
that | have that indicates to nme that the
Sheriff based his opinion on any criteria.

The City Council ordinances -- excuse ne,
the four resolutions approved, the Cty
Counci | ordinances did draw sone very
I nportant distinctions. | -- | don't like the
way they were witten, but neverthel ess, they
said what they said. There were four
applications that preceded -- that preceded
the enactnent of the criteria. The ordinance
of the criteria was enacted in twenty -- | had
t hose nunbers in ny head an hour ago. [In any
event, four of these applications cane before
the criteria were enacted. To have
retroactive application of those ordi nance
criteria to those applications, | don't think
they could have done that. And to the
contrary, in the Gty's ordinances, they
specifically said, we're not applying the
criteria; that we're doing this based only
upon the failure to -- or the fact that we

need the noney.
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The [ ast two applications, however, 0391
and -- 20190391 and 20190392, each of those
specifically say the criteria are in place,
and we are applying them and, oh, by the way,
we al so need the noney. So in ny world, those
| ast two ordi nances are clearly based on the
criteria; the first four are not. So as it
stands, | don't think we can second guess the
first four resolutions, but I think this Board
absol utely has the basis to second guess the
other two that | just nentioned.

The School Board, they sinply relied on
the criteria conpletely. So their criteria,
their resolution said, we don't -- they don't
nmeet the criteria; therefore, you don't get
it. Soin nmy world, a better notion would be
to approve the -- to grant the appeal as to
t he School Board ordi nances according to the
School Board m Il ages, to grant the appeal s as
to 20190391 and 20190392, but to deny the
appeal on the remaining. That, to nme, would
be a nore appropriate notion.

So for that reason, |I'll be voting
agai nst this one.

MR, HOLLEY:
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Do we need to anend the notion,
M. Chairman?
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Not as far as |'mconcerned. It's upto
M. Slone and M. Bishop. | don't get to pick
whi ch notions get anended.
MR. SLONE:

| wll remain with nmy notion.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Al right. Any other questions or
coments fromthe Board?

Any ot her coments fromthe public?

Hearing none -- oh, |I'msorry.
M. Leonard?
MR. LEONARD:

Jimy Leonard with Advantous Consul ting.

"Il make this quick just to add a few points.
Wth the Sheriff not having a body in which he
can rule, we were unable to identify any
formal information fromhis side. But in
goi ng through the Ol eans Parish docunent that
Is on their website that everybody has to read
and follow, and these are the steps, it
clearly states in Nunber 8 -- and this

actually, if y'all want to follow ne, this is
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Item Nunber 3 in y'all's packet that you have.

Step 8 says, the Sheriff Ofice sends a
letter to the BCl with approval or deni al
based on the | TEP Comm ttee reconmendati on.
The | TEP Comm ttee recommendati on for those
2017 and 2018 applications was to approve, and
the Sheriff still denied. So that, it says
the process is for himto do that. And so
that is the only information that is avail abl e
on the Sheriff.

Wth respect to how the matters were
determ ned, the articles that canme out right
after the decision that was nade, |et ne get
to that, this is going to be Nunber 5 --
Nunmber 4 in your packet highlighted at the
top, I'll read a quote from Council Menber
C ndi Nguyen, Folgers did not do anything
wrong, Council Menber C ndi Nguyen sai d;
addi ng that she was only voting to reject the
applications because the Cty needs the noney
and because the applications didn't neet the
City's standards, which are stricter than the
State's, end quote.

Further as you go down, the '17 and ' 18

applications, which were deened to be, quote,
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grandfathered in, as we stated earlier, were
applications that were filed after investnents
wer e made, which were consistent with how

Fol gers had been filing all of their | TEP
applications to date, ran afoul with the
Oleans Parish requirenent to prefile with
themfirst. And she says, none of the six
applications neet the Gty's criteria. That
was all "16 -- that was all the '17, '18, and
19, which requires the creation of 15 jobs
wi th each job paying a mninmumof 18. Al so,
sonme of the applications were for facilities
t hat Fol gers had already built, pronpting
Counci| Menber Helena Moreno to call the
proposed exenptions a gift rather than an
econom c incentive.

So | just wanted to -- all right. A
witten statenent from Hel ena Moreno, thanks
to Governor Edwards, a few years ago, we were
able to take control of the Industrial Tax
Exenpti on program and offered strong | ocal
gui delines to ensure we only grant exenptions
I f corporations neet job creation and | ocal
econom ¢ devel opnent goals. Folgers has net

guidelines in the past, and the Council has
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fairly granted those exenptions, which | am
not aware of; they didn't have any authority
in those early ITEPs. But the Fol gers
exenptions in question now fail these tests,
and the Council voted it down. That was dated
| ast week. So just sinply wanted to make sure
all the information was available prior to
y'all's consideration and vote.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you. Are we ready to vote?

Ckay. There's a notion on the floor to
approve the six contracts -- excuse ne, to
approve the appeal and approve the six
contracts and send themto the Governor for

hi s executi on. And we have a notion and a

second.
Al in favor, say aye?
MR. MCI NNI S:
Aye.
MR, MOSS:
Aye.
CHAl RMAN JONES:
Al'l opposed?
Aye.
MAYCOR TOUPS:
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Nay .
M5, COLA:
Nay .
MR. NASSAR:
Nay .
CHAI RMAN JONES:
Ckay. Let's have a hand vote, please.
Ch, wait. Wait. Wit.
Let's do aroll call vote. Forgive ne.
MS.  SI MMONS:
Davi d Toups?
MAYCOR TOUPS:
Nay .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Yvette Col a?
M5, COLA:
Nay .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Quy Mclnnis?
MR. MCI NNI S:
For .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Stuart Moss?
MR, MOSS:

Yes.
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M. SI MMONS:
Representative Vincent St. Blanc?
REPRESENTATI VE ST. BLANC:
Yes.
M. SI MMONS:
Barry MI1igan?
SENATOR M LLI GAN:
Yes.
M5. SI MVONS:
Kennet h Havard?
MR, HAVARD:.
Yes.
MB. S| MMONS:
Jerald Jones?
CHAI RVAN JONES:
No.
MB. SI MMONS:
Sandra McQuai n?
M5. MCQUAI N:
No.
M. SI MMONS:
Senator Brett Alain?
SENATOR ALLAI N:
Yes.

V5. SI MMONS:
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Representative Stuart Bi shop?
REPRESENTATI VE BI SHOP:
Yes.
MS. S| MVONS:
Secretary Don Pi erson?
SECRETARY Pl ERSON
Nay .
MS. S| MVONS:
CGeorge Nassar ?
MR, NASSAR
Nay .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Marshal Sim en?
MR SIM EN:
Nay .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Ronni e Sl one?
MR, SLONE:
Yes.
MS. S| MVONS:
Zach Lenoi ne?
MR LEMO NE:
Nay .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Travis Hol |l ey?
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MR, HOLLEY:
Nay .
M5. SI MVONS:

We have ni ne nays, eight yes.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Motion fails by a vote of nine to eight.

Al right. Do we have a substitute
nmotion or a new notion on the floor?

MR HOLLEY:

Wt hout sonme help on renenbering the
nunbers, | would nove that the two that you
suggested did neet the requirenents --

CHAI RVAN JONES:

You want nme to take a stab at a notion?
MR, HOLLEY:

Way don't you do that?

CHAI RMAN JONES:

"Il take a stab, and |I'm going to nake
it your notion, okay, and you can correct it
the way it needs to be; that the appeal of
Fol gers be approved as to the School Board
mllage for the six contracts, that the appeal
of Folgers as to the City contracts be
approved for 20190391 and 20190392, and t hat

t he appeal of Fol gers be approved for the
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School Board contracts for those six -- the
School Board mllage for those six contracts.
MR, HOLLEY:

| wll adopt that |anguage as ny own.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you.

MR NASSAR
"Il second that.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
W have a second. A notion and a second.
Any further discussion?

MR. BACERT:

Just to clarify, the Sheriff's taxes are

then not included --

CHAI RVAN JONES:
Correct.

MR. BACERT:

-- in the appeal request?
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Correct. The Sheriff's taxes and the
four that predated the adoption of criteria
for the City of New Ol eans are not included.
MR BAGERT:

So l'dlike to submt a very brief

comentary. The School Board, it's our
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under st andi ng and no testinony was provided
today that the School Board has ever been
informed that their standards were out of
conpliance with the Board of Commrerce and
I ndustry's, so we think it is unfair to hold
t hem account abl e for sonet hing about which
they were not inforned.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Thank you, M. Bagert.

Al right. W have a notion and a
second. All in favor, say aye.
MR, MOSS:

Aye.
REPRESENTATI VE ST. BLANC:

Aye.
SENATOR M LLI GAN:

Aye.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

MAYCOR TOUPS:
Nay .

M5. COLA:
Nay .

MR MCI NN S:
Nay .
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Nay? Ckay. Let's have a roll call

M5. SI MMONS:

Ckay. Mayor David Toups?

MAYCOR TOUPS:
Nay .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Yvette Col a?
M5, COLA:
Nay .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Guy Mclnnis?
MR MCI NNl S:
Nay .
MS.  SI MMONS:
Stuart Moss?
MR, MOSS:
Yes.

M5. SI MMONS:

Representative Vincent St.

REPRESENTATI VE ST. BLANC.
Yes.

MB. SI MMONS:
| can't hear you.

REPRESENTATI VE ST. BLANC:

Bl anc?

vot e.
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Yes.
M5. SI MVONS:
Ckay. Barry MIIligan?
SENATOR M LLI GAN:
Yes.
M5. SI MVONS:
Kennet h Havard?
MR, HAVARD:.
Yes.
M5. SI MMONS:
Jeral d Jones?
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Yes.
M. SI MMONS:
Sandra McQuai n?
MS. MCQUAI N:
Yes.
M5. SI MVONS:
Senator Brett Alain?
SENATOR ALLAI' N
Yes.
M5. SI MVONS:
Representative Stuart Bi shop?
REPRESENTATI VE BI SHOP:

Yes.
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M. SI MMONS:

Secretary Don Pierson?
SECRETARY Pl ERSON:

Nay .
M. SI MMONS:

CGeorge Nassar ?
MR. NASSAR

Yes.
M5. SI MVONS:

Marshal Si m en?
MR SIM EN:

Yes.
MB. S| MMONS:

Ronni e Sl one?
MR SLONE:

Yes.
MB. SI MMONS:

Zach Lenoi ne?
MR. LEMO NE:

Nay .
M. SI MMONS:

Travis Hol |l ey?
MR. HOLLEY:

Yes.

V5. SI MMONS:
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W have 13 yays and five noes?
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Motion carri es.

Al right. W have a lot nore to go.
|"mturning to the Board for -- | want to be a
good steward of your tinme. W have -- |I'm
trying to find ny agenda, |'ve lost it. Here.
Thank you. Okay. W have -- we still have
| ate renewal s, we still have sone conpliance
I ssues and el ection of officers to go. Do you
want to keep going? Do you want to take a
break? What's the pleasure of the Board? You
want to go ahead and keep goi ng?

Al right. Good deal. Thank you. | was
hopi ng that's what you woul d say.

Al right. Next, M. Usie?

MR. USI E:

Next, we have one conpany post Executive
Order 2017 Rul es, Nunber 20180076, Ker ot est
Manuf acturi ng Corporation, Avoyelles Parish.
And | believe the consultant is here today.

MR SHOCKEY:

Yes. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Yes, sir.
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MR, SHOCKEY:

H , good afternoon. M nane is Bill
Shockey. I'mwth the Law Fi rm of Shockey and
Associ ates. We're a Louisiana counsel for
Kerotest and their consultant for this
project. The notice of this neeting -- |'m
here to request a deferral to your next
meet i ng.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay.

MR.  SHOCKEY:

The notice canme two weeks ago. Under
ordi nary circunstances, that would be fine if
t he conpany had executive officers in Mnroe,
New Ol eans, or sonething |ike that. Kerotest
Manuf acturing operation is here. Their
executive officers are in Pittsburgh, but
M. Chris Wiite is the CEO and CFO. This is a
relatively small conpany, about $40 million a
year, so it's not |layers of vice presidents
between the CEO in Pittsburgh and the pl ant
manager in Mansura, who is fine at operations,
but he nmakes valves. He doesn't have the big
picture of the nmarket, et cetera.

M. Wiite, to get here fromPittsburgh is
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at |l east a two-day process. You have to fly
I n yesterday, nmaybe you get a flight out this
af ternoon, maybe you don't, so it's sonetines
maybe a three-day, and he just could not clear
everything else off of his calendar to get
here. |'mprepared to present a statenent on
his behalf, but I"mjust a | awer follow ng
the script, if you wll. Certainly, you can
get a much better dialogue with M. Wite, |
bel i eve, at your April 26th neeting.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Actual ly, we have one recommendati on from
the municipality to termnate --
MR, SHOCKEY:

Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

-- and so | think it would be appropriate
to have himhere just to give himan
opportunity to explain what the situation is.
So | think that -- I think it would be
appropriate to defer if that's the pleasure of
Boar d?

W have a notion from M. Mss. Second
from M. Slone.

Any comments, questions fromthe Board?
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Any ot her coments fromthe public?

Heari ng none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Any opposed?

There is none. W'I| defer it to the
next neeting.

MR SHOCKEY:

Thank you all. He will be here on the

26t h.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

Thank you very nuch.
MR SHOCKEY:

Thank you, Hud.

MR US| E:

Next, we have Nonconpliant Contracts
follow ng the 2018 Rules. W have one
contract, Nunmber 20180413 for G aham Packagi ng
Conpany, LP in West Baton Rouge Parish that is
nonconpliant for the 2021 reporting peri od.
The Exhibit A requires the conpany create and
mai ntain 55 jobs with $2,402,400 in payroll.
The actual jobs created was 44 jobs with

$3,234,852 in payroll. The filing is
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nonconpliant for the job portion only.

The Parish submtted a recomendati on
stating, upon consideration of the foregoing
and public discussion held this day, that the
West Bat on Rouge Parish Council defers to the
Loui si ana Board of Commerce and | ndustry to
request no charges or penalties inplied due to
their expl ained circunstances and anend their
original |ITEP application based on Wst Baton
Pari sh Resolution 3 of 2021. The resolution
is in reference to anending the Exhibit A
agreenent, which was previously approved by
this Board. However, the anendnent was
prospective beginning in 2022. The School
Board nor Sheriff responded with a
reconmendat i on.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. Thank you very nuch for being
here. Please state your nane, your position
with the conpany, please.

MR, BARKER:

Jason Barker, Plant Manager.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Great. And?

MB. JOHNSON:
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Anna Johnson, Executive Director, West
Bat on Rouge Chanber of Commerce.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you for being here. Tell us what
the situation is and the reason for the
nonconpl i ance.

MR BARKER:

So when the original application was
made, G aham enpl oyed 55 people. Twelve jobs
were related to our depalletizing operation,
and there was a change in the agreenent with
our custoner. Twelve of those enpl oyees
stayed with our custoner and continued that
function as they took it over, and which
resulted in now we have 43 enpl oyees.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. So, essentially, the work is
conti nui ng, but the enployees are --
MR BARKER:

Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

-- are working with the custoner instead
of wth you?
MR, BARKER:

Yes, sir.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

s that fair?
MR, BARKER:

Yes, sir.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ckay. Al right. As you see, we've had
one recomrendati on. The only recommendati on
is froma |local entity who responded was to
take no action. The School Board and the
Sheriff did not take tinme to respond. | would
-- yes, ma' anf
MS.  JOHNSON:

| just wanted to nake a conmment that he
didn't nention, they knew they weren't going
to be in conpliance for the said contract
years, so they did proactively reach out to
the local comunity and to LED to get their
Exhi bit A anended. So they got it anended
for, | believe, 2022 noving forward.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ri ght .

MS.  JOHNSON:

We just didn't account for the year.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Understood. Ckay. Good deal. | would
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accept a notion.
MAYOR TOUPS:
Motion for no penalty.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Ckay. W have a notion to approve with
no penalty. Second from M. Nassar.
Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
Any opposed?
There being none, the notion carries.
Thank you, sir. Good luck to you.
MR, BARKER:

Thank you.
M5, JOHNSON:

Thank you.
MR USI E:

Next, we have two contracts, 20180403 and
20180403- A for Indorama Ventures A efins, LLC
in Cal casieu Parish that is nonconpliant for

the 2021 reporting period. The Exhibit A for
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both contracts requires the conpany create and
mai ntain 3 jobs with $100,000 in payroll. The
actual jobs and payroll was zero.

The Parish Council and Sheriff did not
respond with recommendati ons. The School
Board i ssued a resol ution recomendi ng to
reduce by one year the term of tax exenptions
for each contract.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

State your nane and position with the
conpany.
MR, HEXT:

Yes, sir. I|I'mDavid Hext, I"'mthe Site
Manager for Indorama Ventures. This is our --
go ahead.

MR.  ANDERSON:

Chad Anderson, Chief Technol ogy Oficer
and Head of Manufacturing for |ndorama
Vent ur es.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

kay. Geat. Al right. Tell us what
the situation is.
MR HEXT:

So in 2021 --
CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Pull the mc alittle bit closer to you
for the court reporter.
MR HEXT:

Yes, sir. |In 2021, we fell short of the
nunber of Loui siana required resident
enpl oyees. We do have a hi gher nunber of
enpl oyees on site, but we have a nunber of
open positions related that we're trying to
fill. And we're slow to get reenpl oynent
because of COVID and sone of the restrictions
around, you know, seeking enpl oyees during the
COVID tine period. W also have a nunber of
Texas enpl oyees because of our proximty to
the border as well, and we attract enpl oyees
fromthat area.

So we're currently actively working to
fill open positions. |It's a conpetitive area
there in Westlake, Sulfur, and so we're trying
to actively recruit people. W have partnered
wWith here recently in the | ast year SONELA,
their P-Tech Program W're doing sone
mlitary recruiting as well. And in addition,
we' ve inproved our 401K plan to, you know,
attract nore enployees to the site. So we're

doing a lot of things to get up to our
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requi red headcount, and we expect, you know,
we Wil neet the requirenents.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

| want to be sure | understand. There's
-- | have two contracts with three jobs at a
$100,000 in salaries. Is that -- are we
tal ki ng about six jobs or just three jobs for
the two contracts?

MR US| E:

It's just three. They're sharing an
Exhi bit A
CHAI RVAN JONES:

They're sharing --

MR, USI E:

It's one project that assets were pl aced
in service in different years.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Thank you. Thank you. That was ny --
you said it better than | did. GCkay. Good.
Al right. As you can see, we've had no
response fromthe Police Jury or the Sheriff,
but the School Board has responded and

recomended that the Board reduce the term by

one year. Did you have any conversations with

the School Board prior to that decision?
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MR HEXT:

No. We went to the School Board where it
was di scussed, but we -- they made their
judgnent there at the School Board |evel. |
do have a few nunbers to share. |In 2021, our
Loui si ana payroll was $14.8 m|lion and our
average salary for our Louisiana residents is
$134, 000, so these are high paying jobs. They
are technical professionals. W need
qual i fi ed experienced operators for our
hazardous chem cal plant. You know, it's not
-- this is not unskilled workers.

These are skilled workers and people with
very needed skill sets in that area, and
that's been a challenge for us to attract.
We're fighting all of our |ocal conpetition.
And you've attracted a lot of stuff to the
State, and we're all trying to draw off the
sane source.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Board, what's your pleasure? M. Mss?
MR MOSS:

| nove for a one-year penalty.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

M. Mss, the notion is to approve the
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application wwth a one-year penalty. A second
from M. Slone.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Any comments fromthe public? Yeah?

MR. BRODERI CK:

Jessie Broderick with Sumt Credits,
consul tants that works with Indorama to assi st
them t hrough their conpliance, just wanted to
make a couple of points. One, they did neet
with the -- not neet wth the School Board,
was at the School Board neeting, we were
present and expressed to themthat we are
wor king to neet the job requirenents, to neet
the requirenents of the contract, then they
made their decisions accordingly. And the
thing that I would ask that you consider, just
as you considered earlier today, it was only
the School Board, the only organi zation that
I's requesting that a reduced term

The Parish and the Sheriff actually were
in favor of this project, but they chose to
just not say anything as opposed to send a
letter, but they didn't -- and M. Jonathon
fromthe Aliance is here, he can probably

speak to that. But | guess what |I'masking is
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t hat you maybe consider if you' re going to do
a penalty to only have it apply to the School
Board portion.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

M. Moss, it's your notion.
MAYCOR TOUPS:

| wll offer a substitute notion to that
extent, a one-year penalty for the School
Board and no penalty for the other two
entities.
MR, MOSS:

Since the School Board spoke out agai nst
it?
MAYOR TOUPS:

Exactly. |'mrepresenting | ocal
government. They spoke up, so.
MR, MOSS:

Thank you. Local governnment, they're in
nmy backyard.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

So I think we have a substitute notion --
MR MOSS:

|"'mokay with the substitute notion.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

-- to basically approve wth a one-year
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penalty for the School Board m |l age, but no
penalty for the Police Jury and the Sheriff.
MB. CHENG

M. Jones, |I'"'mnot sure that y'all can do
t hat because that woul d put the expiration
date of the contract different for the sane
contract for different m |l ages.

CHAlI RVAN JONES:

Help me -- oh, | see what you're saying.
MR. MOSS:
If that's the case, I'mgoing to stay

with ny original notion.
MAYOR TOUPS:

| tried.
MR MOSS:

| understand. | see the point.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Point well taken. Al right. W have a
notion and a second to approve with one-year
penal ty across the board.

Any ot her questions or comments?

There being none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RMAN JONES:
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Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.

Thank you, sir.

Al right. Next?

MAYCOR TOUPS:

| would like to register ny vote as a
nay.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Ch, I"'msorry. | didn't -- | apol ogi ze.
| didn't get an opposition.
MAYCOR TOUPS:

Yes.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Let's go back and let's give -- | asked
for the yays.

Any opposition?

MAYCOR TOUPS:

Nay .

MR MCI NN S:

Nay .

CHAI RMAN JONES:

W have two nays, M. MlInnis and Mayor
Toups. I|I'msorry I'"mgetting a little punchy,
guys. Hang with ne.

MAYCOR TOUPS:

COURT REPORTERS OF LOUSIANA, LLC
A Veritext Company


http://www.acmereporting.com

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BOARD OF COMMERCBXOINIDRESTRY

© 00 N oo 0o B~ W DN PP

N D N NDDNMNMNDNN P P P PP P PR
a b~ W N b O © 00 N O O B~ W N - O

Page 220

That's all right.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. Next?
MR. USI E:

Next, we have one contract, Nunber
20180275 for Instrunent and Val ve Services
Conpany in Cal casieu Parish that is
nonconpliant for the 2021 reporting peri od.
The Exhibit A for the contract requires the
conpany create and maintain five jobs with
$268, 000 in payroll. The actual jobs and
payrol|l was zero. The conpany is also
nonconpliant due to the late filing. The
conpl i ance was due April 30th of 2022 but not
received until June 27th, 2022.

No responses were received fromthe
Parish, the Sheriff, or the Gty. The School
Board denied the initial exenption at the tine
of the application; therefore, it is not
appl i cabl e.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right. Yes, please state your nane
and your position with the conpany, please.
MR HEI NZ:

|"'m Doug Heinz. |I'ma Site Sel ection
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Consultant with Kroll, and | assisted

| nstrunment and Val ve Services with this
original contract. And |I'mjoined here today
by (indicating).

MR. MCDANI EL:

H, I'mdiff MDaniel. [|I'mDrector of

Qperations for John H Carter.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Al right.
MR HEI NZ:
So early at the --
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Pull the mc closer. Pull it to you.
MR HEI NZ:

Earlier at the neeting today, we had
requested the contract be assigned over from
| nstrument and Val ve Services to John H.
Carter, which was approved here by the Board.
And so if | can get sonme, you know, background
on the overall project and what transpired, |
think that will explain the nonconpliance for
2021.

CHAI RMAN JONES:
First of all, tell nme what you nake.

Tell nme what's made at the --
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MR HEI NZ:

They are -- they manufacture val ves and
val ve manufacturing and repair there at the
facility.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Got it. I'msorry. Go ahead.
MR HEI NZ:

So this project was originally
constructed by Instrunment and Val ve Services
in 2019. It was a 30,000 square foot
facility, about $4 mllion of cap X, $3.7
mllion. They had 11 jobs at the site. And
as part of this expansion, it was actually
built on a greenfield, they were going to
create 25 new jobs as a part of this facility,
so retaining 11 and then addi ng 25 new j obs.

This project was conpleted in May 15th of
2020. The operations began in June 2020
during COVID, and Instrunment and Val ve
Services retained all enployees during that
time. In August of 2021, IVS transferred
operations to John H Carter, neaning that IVS
essentially termnated all of their enpl oyees,
and they were subsequently hired by John H.
Carter. Al enployees fromIVS were rehired
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by John H Carter, who took over operations at
the facility with no interruptions of

busi ness, no inpact to custoners there in the
facility.

So at that tinme, John H Carter purchased
the assets at the facility and then decided to
| ease the building while they worked out
negoti ati ons on actually purchasing the
bui | di ng, which would allow us to then
transfer the contract over. And so
technically as of Decenber 31, 2021, I1VS did
not enpl oy any enpl oyees at the facility.
Those were enpl oyed by John H Carter at the
time. So on our 2021 conpliance report, the
reason we're showi ng zero, you know, new
enpl oyees i s because, technically, |VS had
transferred those operations over to John H.
Carter at that tine.

John H. Carter has continued the
operations at the facility. They are
currently enploying 29 enpl oyees with $2.5
mllion in payroll. That is exceeding the
contractual requirenents stipulated in the
original agreenent with IVS. And so part of

what we're requesting here is to transfer the
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assi gnnent over to John H Carter, which was
approved. And then for this conpliant

provi sion, we would respectfully request that
the incentive is maintained at the current
rate and that John H Carter is able to
utilize this tax exenption going forward in
support of their business.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

kay. | think I followed that, and |
have one question just to follow up. So the
five jobs were created and the payroll was
met, but it was being paid by John H Carter
I nstead of Instrunent and Val ve Services?

MR HEI NZ:
Yes, sir.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

| s that accurate?
MR HEI NZ:

Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

Ckay. Al right. Oay. Y all follow
where we are? Basically, we just transferred
this contract fromthis conpany to a different
conpany earlier in the neeting, and they had

al ready started operating the conpany neeting
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the obligation. So the question then really

becones, if we approve this, it will go to the

benefit of the new conpany, of the conpany

t hat

is already operating at the site --

MR, HEl NZ:

Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

-- under a new nane. Ckay. And as you

can see, we've gotten no response from any

| ocal

gover nnent .

MR, MOSS:

| make a notion to approve.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

penal

W have a notion to approve wth no

ty.

MAYOR TOUPS:

Second.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

ALL:

We have a second from Mayor Toups.
Any comments or questions fromthe Board?
Any coments fromthe public?

There being none, all in favor, say aye.

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.
MR HEI NZ:

Al right. Thank you, sir.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
Appreci ate your tine.
MR. US| E:

Next, we have one contract, Nunber
20170480 for Louisiana Spirits, LLCin
Jefferson Davis Parish that is nonconpliant
for the 2021 reporting period. The Exhibit A
for the contract requires the conpany create
and nmaintain three jobs with $9,000 in
payroll. The actual jobs created was seven
jobs with $27,148 in payroll. The conpany is
nonconpl i ant for the payroll portion only.

The Parish submtted a recommendati on
stating to defer any decision or action on the
conpany's nonconpliance to the Loui siana Board
of Commerce and |Industry. The School Board
submtted a recommendation stating to take no
action against Louisiana Spirits for its
nonconpl i ance. And the Sheriff did not
respond.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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Good evening. State your nane and
position of the conpany, please.
MR TORRE:

My nane is Angelo Torre. |'mthe
Director of Manufacturing for Stoli Goup and
the Managing O ficer for Louisiana Spirits,
which is the manufacturer of several brands,
Bayou Rum Kentucky OM Bourbon, and Gator
Bite Liquor.

MR. BRODERI CK:

And |'m Jessie Broderick with Sumt
Credits just to answer any general questions.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

So it |ooks like you have exceeded the
job requirenents, but you fell short on the
payroll. Tell us what's going on.

MR TORRE:

It was the payroll towards the end of the
year, | believe, the nonths of Novenber and
Decenber, sone of that rolled into the next
year, 2022. And in 2022 is when | arrived at
the organi zati on and was nmade aware of our
shortfall, and since then have doubl ed the
payrol|l and the nunber of FTEs. So we're now

at actually 36 enpl oyees with a payroll of
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$1.8 mllion.

And we do -- | do also have, | net with
all three taxing entities. And | do have a
letter fromthe Sheriff, Ivy Wods where he
recommended no penalty as well, so two of the
t hr ee.

CHAl RMAN JONES:

Ckay.

MR, BRODERI CK:

And just to answer your question, you're
correct, that the jobs in 2021 was a rough
year for them and they did hire a nunber of
] obs towards the end of the year in Decenber.
And so they net the jobs requirenent active as
of the end of the year. But because it was
only a nonth or two of payroll, that's why
they did not nake the payroll requirenent.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Al right.

MR, MOSS:

| nove with no penalties.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

W have a notion to approve wth no
penalty by M. Mss, second fromM. Allain.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?
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Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

Hearing, none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RMAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There is none, the notion carri es.

Thank you very nuch.

MR TORRE:

Thank you.
MR. BRODERI CK:

Thank you.
MR USI E:

Next, we have one contract, Nunber
20180110 for Service Machine & Supply, Inc. in
Lafayette Parish that is nonconpliant for the
2021 reporting period. The Exhibit A for the
contract required the conpany create and
mai ntain two jobs with $100, 000 in payroll.
The actual jobs and payroll was zero.

The Parish denied the initial exenption
at the tinme of the application, so it does not
apply. And no responses were received from

t he School Board, nor the Sheriff.
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

Yes, sir, state your nane.
MR MECHE:

My nane is Chris Meche, |'mthe conpany
CPA.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Tel |l us what happened on the failure to
add the two new jobs with the sal ari es.
MR MECHE:

kay. Well, thisis simlar. | was here
| ast year about this tine explaining, you
know, where we were and how we had been
affected by everything. First reason being,
COVI D shutdown, which is self-explanatory. W
had a substantial |loss in revenues for the '20
t hrough ' 22 years as conpared to '19 as a base
year before the COVID and sl owdown in the
i ndustry. W suffered about a 53 percent | oss
of revenue in 2020 conpared to '19. The '21
year was a 48 percent |loss. But | ooking
forward to '22, we're only at a 19 percent
|l oss. So things are definitely inproving
within the industry and the revenues are being
generated; thus, our next point is with the

] obs.
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1 We're now at 38 jobs. About the mddle
2 way -- '21 was actually our toughest year, we
3 actually dropped down to 33 jobs, but '22 has
4 pi cked up substantially. About m dway through
5 '22, we have gotten to 38 jobs. And we're
6 | there now.
7 CHAl RMAN JONES:
8 So your base nunber of jobs was what at
9 | the tine of the contract?
10 MR MECHE:
11 Thirty-eight.
12 CHAl RMAN JONES:
13 Thirty-eight.
14 MR MECHE:
15 Thirty-six was where we were when we
16 started the project and we were supposed to
17 create two new j obs.
18 CHAI RVAN JONES:
19 And you're at 38 now?
20 MR MECHE:
21 At 38 now, correct.
22 CHAl RMAN JONES:
23 Al right.
24 MR, MECHE:
25 | did have a conversation wth the
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conpany president yesterday and he said, you
know, there's a |lack of experienced peopl e out
there to hire. And he said he actually could
hire eight to ten nore today, but he's just
havi ng trouble finding qualified candi dates.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Al right. So with the two ot her
enpl oyees that you picked up, are you neeting

the salary requirenent as well?

MR MECHE:
Yes.

CHAl RMAN JONES:
Ckay.

MR MECHE:

So we're asking the Board to approve with
no actions or penalties, as they did |ast
year. And we really appreciate the hel p that
we were given |last year. |It's hel ped
t remendousl y.

CHAI RVAN JONES:

And, again, we've gotten no response from
the entities that have put the contracts in
place, so I'll entertain a notion.

A notion to approve with no penalty? W

have a notion from M. Slone, a second by
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1 M. St. Blanc.

2 Any questions or comments fromthe Board?
3 Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

4 | public?

5 Heari ng none, all in favor, say aye.

6 ALL:

7 Aye.

8 CHAI RVAN JONES:

9 Any opposition?

10 None, notion carries.

11 MR MECHE:

12 Appr eci ate your support.

13 MR, US| E:

14 Last, we have one contract, Nunber

15 20180460 for Ternium USA, Inc. in Caddo Parish
16 that is nonconpliant for the 2021 reporting

17 period. The Exhibit A for the contract

18 requires the conpany create and maintain six
19 jobs with $390,000 in payroll. The actual
20 j obs and payroll were zero.
21 No responses were received fromthe
22 Pari sh, the School Board, or the Sheriff.
23 MR JORGE:
24 Good norning. M nane is Jorge Atena.
25 |''mthe Regional Controller of Ternium
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CHAI RVAN JONES:

G eat .

MR JORGE:

And | just wanted to explain, this was a
very tenporary situation fromthe | ast quarter
during 2021. The reasons were, we had a | ot
of turnovers during that year. | think it was
a particular situation, the | abor market and
all across the US. W were having a | ot of
resignations, and our HR were having a hard
time to replace those jobs and keep them So,
basically, | believe that in terns of anount
of salary of payroll, we achieved the goal,
but they didn't count because they were so
tenporary because of that turnover.

W work a |l ot of changing the policies to
attract new jobs. And by February, we were on
the | evel that we should be at. And,
actually, we were in creating two nore jobs
than the six that we commtted. So by
February, we were 168 already. So it was just
basically those three nonths Cctober,

Novenber, and Decenber that were really
chaotic to keep all of the payroll.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
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So to make sure | understand, so as of

February of this year 2023, you are at the

nunber that --
MR JORGE:
Yes, we're at 168. Basically, like

Novenber, we were at 178.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

" msorry, 20227
MR JORCE:

2022, yeah. February of 2022, we were
168. And by Novenber 2022, we were 178.
CHAl RMAN JONES:

kay. Al right. And, again, we have no
direction fromthe School Board, the Pari sh,
or the Sheriff. So I'll entertain a notion to
approve from M. Nassar with no penalty,
second from M. Simen.

Any questions or comments fromthe Board?

Heari ng none, any comments fromthe

public?

Hearing none, all in favor, say aye.
ALL:

Aye.

CHAI RVAN JONES:
Al'l opposed?
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There being none, the notion carries.
Thank you very mnuch.
MR US| E:
And that concl udes | TEP.
CHAI RMAN JONES:
Thank you, M. Usie.
Now, any other business? W have
el ection of officers. Anybody want this job?
MR, SLONE:
| do not want to go to |aw school, I'm
sorry.
SECRETARY PI ERSON:

| nom nate Jerry Jones for Chair

M5, MCQUAI N:
Second.
MAYOR TOUPS:

| make a notion to cl ose nom nati ons.
MR SLONE:
| second.
CHAI RVAN JONES:
Al in favor, say aye.
ALL:
Aye.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

None of you get Christmas cards.
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Now, we have a Vice Chairman. Do we have
a nom nation for Vice Chairman? W have a
notion from M. Nassar that M. Slone continue
in that capacity.
MR SLONE:

| am not going to | aw school .
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Motion and second. All in favor, say
aye.
ALL:

Aye.
CHAI RVAN JONES:

Any opposition?

There being none, the notion carries.

Thank you, M. Slone. |'mglad you got
nmy W ng.

Al right. M. Pierson?
SECRETARY Pl ERSON:

|"mgoing to forgo the Secretary's
remar ks, unless there's any questions fromthe
Boar d.
CHAI RMAN JONES:

Thank you very nuch. | apologize for the
| ength of the neeting and, perhaps, the

contentious of it, but thank you all for
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hangi ng wi th us.
Motion to adjourn?
W have a notion, a second.
Al in favor, say aye.
ALL:
Aye.
CHAl RMAN JONES:
We are adj our ned.
(WHEREUPON, THE MEETI NG ADJOURNED. )
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1 REPORTER'S CERTI FI CATE

2 I, KELLY S. PERRIN, a Certified Court

3 | Reporter, Certificate #23035, in good standing with
4 | the State of Louisiana, as the officer before whom
51this neeting was taken, do hereby certify that the
6 | foregoi ng 238 pages;

7 That this testinony was reported by ne in

8 | st enogr aphi ¢ machi ne shorthand by Conputer-Ai ded

9 | Transcription, transcribed by ne or under ny

10 | personal direction and supervision, and is a true
11 | and correct transcript to the best of ny ability
12 | and under st andi ng;

13 That the transcript has been prepared in

14 | conpliance wth transcript format guidelines

15 | required by statute or by rules of the Board, that
16 | | have acted in conpliance with the prohibition on
17 | contractual rel ationships, as defined by Louisiana
18 | Code of G vil Procedure Article 1434 and in rules
19 | and advi sory opinions of the Board; that | am not
20 | of counsel nor related to any person participating
21 |in this cause and amin no way interested in the
22 | outcome of this event.
23
24
25
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This certification is valid only for a
transcri pt acconpanied by ny handwitten or digital
signature and the inmage of ny State-authorized seal

on this page.

Si gned: ,Zj&’ ‘! P .

KELLY S. PERRI N, CCR
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